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ABBREVIATIONS

& 8

In this annual report, the following abbreviations have the
following meanings unless otherwise specified:

“Board”

“Company”

“Directors”

”Group”

“HKD"

“Hong Kong”

“Listing Rules”

“PRC"

“RMB”"

“SEQ”

“Stock Exchange”

“UsD”

u% ”

2 NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥R & (BIiEBEA T

the board of directors of the
Company

New Provenance Everlasting
Holdings Limited

the directors of the Company

the Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful
currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the People’s Republic of China,
excluding Hong Kong, the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the
PRC and Taiwan

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the
PRC

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

United States dollars

per cent
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

R 551 2

For the year ended 31

March

BHE=A=+—HLEE

2025 2024
ZEZRE =~ 110
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Operational Results REEE
Revenue Y & 470,308 864,305
Gross (loss)/profit (EB) /E7 (4,025) 12,033
Loss for the year FREE (46,098) (31,181)
Loss for the year attributable to KABIEB NEEENEIR
owners of the Company (45,881) (30,782)
As at 31 March
H=B=+—H
2025 2024
- - = 1s = 5
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Financial Position B SRR
Non-current assets ERBEE 49,941 64,490
Current assets BB E 458,409 495,865
Current liabilities REEE (132,630) (131,357)
Net current assets MENEEFE 325,779 364,508
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (66) (2,618)
Total equity HEmAEEE 375,654 426,380
Non-controlling interests FEER R 9,413 9,251
Total equity attributable to owners KATBIEB NIRRT
of the Company 385,607 435,631
Loss per share (HK cent) SEE (BW) (0.218) (0.146)
Key Ratio Analysis FELEERDWN
Gross (loss)/profit margin (BEX) [ EF]E (0.9%) 1.4%
Net loss margin AEIEE (9.8%) (3.6%)
Current ratio (Note 1) TRENEEE (BfaET) 3.46 3.78
Note: Wit
1. Current ratio: Current assets divided by current liabilities. 1. MEILEE O REBEERUREBAR
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Yu-shun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Sun Le

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Sun Di

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam
Mr. Tang Kin Nam
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Kin Nam
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Kin Nam

Mr. Ho Yu-shun

Mr. Kwong Wing Ho

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Tang Kin Nam (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam

Mr. Ho Yu-shun

Mr. Kwong Wing Ho

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Tang Kin Nam (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam

Mr. Ho Yu-shun

Mr. Kwong Wing Ho

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

Mr. Ho Yu-shun
Ms. Ng Wing Suen

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Wing Suen
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AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
STOCK CODE
2326

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House 2
Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND
HEAD OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Unit 1102, 11/F
Shui On Centre
No. 6-8 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation
CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F., Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

COMPANY HOMEPAGE

http://www.npegroup.com.hk

CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH

1% BB

EE5E (555 TMmEBHaRAT
R HUER

2326

3 EE

Clarendon House 2
Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

ERTEERMBREMERE

HHEET
B E6-85%
ImZ A
1181102F

FEFERRT

PEERBTROBRAE
BEXERTARAR
ERIRIT (BB ARQF
BERITARLQH
FOFBERTARAR

2B FEEE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

BEERNBRERDE

BEREEILERAT
5B

ERE165
BRSSP O7IE
YNGR R

http://www.npegroup.com.hk

ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 £E¥R 2024/25



6

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITRBE

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Company together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2025
(the “Year”).

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the Year, the Group has been principally engaged in
the sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related industrial
materials, and the production and sale of industrial products.

Following the market conditions in 2023, the price of
manganese continued to fluctuate significantly in 2024, and
the performance of the Group’s business of sourcing and sale
of metal minerals and related industrial materials continued to
be affected. Secondly, due to the fluctuation of the exchange
rate between RMB and USD, most customers have requested
RMB as the unit of settlement, which also affected the demand
for overall orders. The Group tried to reorganise its customer
base and cooperate with more new customers during the
Year, as well as exploring and reviewing the feasibility of new
business forms. The above factors are the main reasons for
the impact on the performance of the Group’s business of
sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related industrial
materials.

On the other hand, the performance of the Group’s business of
production and sale of industrial products deteriorated during
the Year, mainly due to the increase in upstream raw material
prices that in-turn caused an increase in production costs.
However, as the Group was not able to adjust its strategy in a
timely manner to reduce risks, coupled with the fact that the
regional price fluctuations of finished products resulted in an
overall loss.

The management of the Group will continue to review its
operating performance and efficiency from time to time
to further improve the returns it brings to the Company’s
shareholders.
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PROSPECTS

In 2025, under the influence of tariff rates, the trade tensions
escalated, increasing market uncertainty. In addition, the
escalation of regional conflicts and the continued war
between Russia and Ukraine led to regional tensions and
pressure on the international trade environment. Although
there are many unstable factors, the demand for steel in
the mainland market has rebounded, and industries such as
infrastructure will continue to pick up. Manganese can be
used for steelmaking, and large manganese mine owners have
chosen to reduce production to keep the price of manganese
stable. The above factors are expected to have a positive
impact on the Group'’s business performance.

The development of new battery materials may also drive
the demand for manganese. As the sales of electric vehicles
have been increasing in recent years, adding manganese is
a relatively cheap technology to extend the range of electric
vehicles, so the demand for manganese in the automotive
industry is expected to increase. Sulfuric acid is a necessary
raw material for the production of lead-acid batteries, which
are mainly used in automobiles and electric vehicles, which
has driven the demand for sulfuric acid. This will have a
positive impact on the development of the Group’s business
of sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related industrial
materials, and production and sale of industrial products.

There are still many challenges to be faced in 2025, but there
are also new opportunities. The Group remains optimistic and
cautious in finding a balance amid the slowdown in global
economic growth, seizing upcoming business opportunities
and further improving and enhancing the returns to its
shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | hereby express my sincere gratitude
to all of our shareholders and business partners for their
continuous support, and to all directors and employees for
their efforts and contributions during the Year.

Ho Yu-shun
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2025
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BUSINESS REVIEW
e AE

OPERATIONS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2025 (the “Year”), the Group was
principally engaged in the sourcing and sale of metal minerals
and related industrial materials, and the production and sale
of industrial products.

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group recorded a decrease in revenue from approximately
HK$864,305,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024 (the
“Last Year”) to approximately HK$470,308,000 for the Year,
representing a decrease by approximately 46% as compared to
the Last Year. The Group recorded a decrease from gross profit
of approximately HK$12,033,000 for the Last Year to a gross
loss of approximately HK$4,025,000 for the Year, representing
a decrease by approximately 133% as compared to the Last
Year.

For the sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related
industrial materials business, the Group recorded a segment
revenue of approximately HK$366,084,000 for the Year (2024:
approximately HK$731,918,000), representing a decrease
by approximately 50% as compared to the Last Year. The
segment profit was approximately HK$1,160,000 for the Year,
representing a decrease of approximately 75% as compared
to approximately HK$4,617,000 for the Last Year. The Group is
acting as a principal in this business because the Group bears
the inventory risk as the Group entered into distinct sale and
purchase agreements with suppliers and customers and has
discretion in establishing the price for the product sold.

For the production and sale of industrial products business
under 2 EEZERRERGETBERLXE (literally
translated as Ningxia Huaxia Integrated Waste Recycling
Company Limited) (the “"Waste Recycling Company”),
the Group recorded a segment revenue of approximately
HK$104,224,000 for the Year (2024: approximately
HK$132,387,000), representing a decrease of approximately
21% as compared to the Last Year. The segment loss was
approximately HKS$5,731,000 for the Year, representing a
decrease of approximately 184% as compared to the segment
profit of approximately HK$6,836,000 for the Last Year.

EH5[00ER

BE_T_AF=RA=+—BLEE (I&F
B) TSERFENERBERIHESBEY RE
BTHERNUREEREETERER

Wz B EF
rEERERERBEE_SE_NE=A=+—8
IFEE (TEEE)) 24864,305,0008 TR/ EA
FE 2 #9470,308,00078 70 > iR EFE RV 4946% ©
AEBAREFEZEFNA12,033,0008 TR DE
NEE 2 EIE494,025,0008 70 R EEER DL
133%°
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BT (CE A £9731,918,00087T) » B L&
RV #I50% c 38R M B EFE44,617,0008
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FEE D875 F)496,836,00078 7T 6 /L 49184% ©
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Other Net Income

During the Year, the Group recorded the other net income
of approximately HK$995,000 (2024: approximately
HK$3,169,000) which mainly comprised net foreign exchange
gain or loss together with interest income and sundry
income. The net foreign exchange gain or loss was arisen
from the exposure to foreign exchange risk, which was mainly
related to RMB and USD. Over the last two years, the Group’s
management has successfully minimized the Group's foreign
currency exposure and therefore the net foreign exchange
gain or loss amount was maintained at the relatively low level
for both of the Year and the Last Year.

The overall variance between the other net income recorded
for the Year and for the Last Year was approximately 69%, and
there was no material fluctuation for the other net income
recorded for the Year as compared to the Last Year.

Administrative Expenses

During the Year, the Group recorded the administrative
expenses of approximately HK$16,941,000 (2024:
approximately HK$13,620,000). The overall administrative
expenses of the Group increased by approximately 24% as
compared to the Last Year. Administrative expenses primarily
include staff costs, general administrative expenses and
depreciation.

Other Operating Expenses

During the Year, the Group recorded the other operating
expenses of approximately HK$5,586,000 (2024: other
operating income approximately HK$2,018,000). Other
operating expenses are mainly represented by the loss
allowance recognised/reversal of loss allowance on deposits
and other receivables, loss allowance recognised on amount
due from non-controlling interest, loss on lease modification,
and written down/reversal of write - down on inventories.

Loss Allowance Recognised On Trade Receivables

During the Year, the Group recorded the loss allowance
recognised on trade receivables of approximately
HK$5,186,000 (2024: approximately HK$32,615,000). The
Group has provided, after making reference to the assessment
of a valuation specialist, a specific expected credit loss
of approximately HK$39,130,000 (2024: approximately
HK$32,637,000) as at 31 March 2025. The settlement of one
of the debtors of the Group being subject to a valuator debt
restructuring repayment plan approved by the court of
People’s Republic of China.

BUSINESS REVIEW
FE 5[0l B8
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BUSINESS REVIEW
E 3 o)

Finance Costs

During the Year, the Group recorded the finance costs of
approximately HK$575,000 (2024: approximately HK$639,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 10% as compared
to the Last Year. The decrease in finance costs was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the interest on lease liabilities
during the Year as compared to the Last Year.

For both of the Year and the Last Year, the Group has reduced
the use of bills receivables discounting arrangement in its
sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related industrial
materials business. The bills discount charge recorded
for both of the Year and the Last Year were therefore at a
minimum level. The Group’s management is continuously
and carefully monitoring the Group’s capital structure in
order to utilize its financial resources to meet its ongoing
operational requirements and business expansion. The Group
may consider making the discounting arrangement of bills
receivables to maintain the cash flows of the Group on a
certain level when appropriate and necessary.

Loss For The Year

During the Year, the Group recorded an increase in loss,
from approximately HK$31,181,000 for the Last Year to
approximately HK$46,098,000 for the Year, representing an
increase of approximately 48% as compared to the Last Year.
The increase in the Group’s loss was mainly attributable to
the impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
impairment loss on right-of-use assets. The Group has been
implementing austerity measures to control the operation cost
and capital expenditure in order to reserve a sufficient level of
resources and capital.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$45,881,000 (2024:
approximately HK$30,782,000). This represented a basic loss
per share of HK0.218 cent for the Year (2024: HK0.146 cent).

=1 %:
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group financed its operations mainly by cash generated
from its business activities and credit facilities provided by
banks. As at 31 March 2025, the Group had current assets
of approximately HK$458,409,000 (2024: approximately
HK$495,865,0000), comprising cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$3,134,000 (2024: approximately
HK$6,503,000).

The Group’s current ratio, calculated based on current assets
of approximately HK$458,409,000 (2024: approximately
HK$495,865,000) over current liabilities of approximately
HK$132,630,000 (2024: approximately HK$131,357,000),
was 3.46 (2024: 3.78), which represented a decrease when
compared with the current ratio as at 31 March 2024. As
at 31 March 2025, the Group’s trade payables amounted
to approximately HK$88,479,000 (2024: approximately
HK$74,145,000); trade receivables amounted to approximately
HK$132,838,000 (2024: approximately HK$171,998,000).

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s equity attributable to owners
of the Company decreased to approximately HK$385,067,000
(2024: approximately HK$435,631,000). No material change
has been recorded in equity attributable to owners of the
Company from 31 March 2024 up till 31 March 2025.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group continued to implement
a prudent financial management policy to protect the
shareholders’ interest of the Group. The management will
keep on exploring the feasibility of carrying out certain
financing activities, with the support from financial and
securities institutions and professional advisors, to meet its
ongoing operational requirements and business expansions
requirements.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals for the
year ended 31 March 2025.

BUSINESS REVIEW
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BUSINESS REVIEW
E 3 o)

Foreign Currency Management

The monetary assets and liabilities as well as business
transactions of the Group are mainly carried out and
conducted in HKD, RMB and USD. The Group maintains a
strategy in its foreign currency risk management, primarily
by including the estimated exchange differences on currency
exposure in our pricing of metal minerals trade to minimize
the impact of foreign exchange risk on the Group'’s profit. The
Group will enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to
hedge against the Group’s currency exposure if appropriate
and necessary. The management thus believes the current
level of bank balances, certain receivables and payables
denominated in RMB and USD expose the Group to a
manageable foreign currency risk. The management is paying
vigilant attention to the fluctuation of RMB and is constantly
and closely monitoring the foreign currency exposure. The
Group will further consider using any appropriate financial
derivatives to hedge against the Group's currency risk and
manage its exposure.

Capital Commitment
As at 31 March 2025, the Group had no capital commitments
(2024: RMB9,629,000).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2025, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2024: nil).

Events After The Reporting Period

Based on the information currently available, the Directors
confirm that there has been no material adverse change in the
financial or trading position of the Group since the end of the
reporting period and up to the date of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXAEREEAGREEFTS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Yu-shun, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Member of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Risk Management Committee

Aged 47, Mr. Ho has been an employee of the Company as its
deputy chief executive officer since 1 September 2022 and has
been appointed as an executive director with effect from 19
September 2022. He is also a director of several subsidiaries
of the Company. He has also been appointed as the chairman
of the Board and authorised representative of the Company
and re-designated as chief executive officer with effect from 1
October 2022.

Mr. Ho, graduated from Tamkang University with a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering in 2003 and further obtained
a master’s degree in business administration from the
National Cheng Kung University in 2005. He has over 10
years’ experience in the corporate banking and global trading
business. Before joining the Group, from August 2011 to
January 2016, he has worked as an assistant vice president
of Bank SinoPac. He then has served as a general manager
of Hong Kong Tian Yuan Manganese International Trade Co.,
Limited from January 2016 to August 2022, and also served as
a general manager of Taipei Tianyuan Metal International Co.,
Ltd. from April 2019 to August 2022.

Ms. Sun Le

Aged 37, joined the Company as an executive director in
November 2019. Ms. Sun is also a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

Ms. Sun graduated from the Self-taught higher education
examination (EEHAEBEE2ZE5) in Tourism Management
from the Northeast Normal University (BEJGED&IAER) |
2011. Ms. Sun has served as the senior management for
several trading companies in the People’s Republic of China,
and she has accumulated solid management experience in the
trading business sector.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEAEREEAEREFE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Sun Di

Aged 39, joined the Company as a non-executive director
in September 2019. Ms. Sun is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Sun obtained a Bachelor’s degree in German with a minor
in international economics and trade from the Beijing Foreign
Studies University in July 2009. Ms. Sun is a non-practicing
member of The Chinese Institution of Certified Public
Accountants.

Ms. Sun has extensive experience in accounting, auditing and
risk management in the finance and investment industry. She
had worked in KPMG Huazhen, an international CPA firm, for
the period from October 2011 to January 2018.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee and Member of the Risk
Management Committee and the Nomination Committee
Aged 56, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director in February 2020 and is currently the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee, and member of the Risk Management Committee
and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor’s degree in social science
from the University of Hong Kong in 1991, a master’s degree in
accounting from the Curtin University of Technology (currently
known as Curtin University) in 1997 and a master degree
in science from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 2002. Mr. Cheung is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is a Certified
Practicing Accountant of CPA Australia.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Cheung currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of Boyaa Interactive International Limited (stock code:
434) and China Development Bank International Investment
Limited (stock code 1062). Mr. Cheung served as an executive
director of Silk Road Logistics Holdings Limited (stock code:
988) from June 2021 to April 2024, an independent non-
executive director of Guoan International Limited (stock code:
143) from 2020 to 2021, and as the chief financial officer of
China Zenix Auto International Limited (OTC: ZXAlY) from 2014
to 2022. The companies indicated above with stock code are
listed in United States of America and Hong Kong.

Mr. Kwong Wing Ho, Member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Risk Management Committee

Aged 52, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director and has been appointed as member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee in October 2022.

Mr. Kwong obtained a degree of bachelor of laws in 1995
and subsequently a postgraduate certificates in laws in 1997
from the City University of Hong Kong. He further obtained a
degree of master of laws from the University of Liverpool in
1996. He qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1999 and has
been appointed as a civil celebrant of marriages since 2007.

Mr. Kwong, has more than 25 years’ experience in the legal
field. Mr. Kwong has been a consultant of Messrs. S. H. Chou &
Co. since 4 July 2022.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEAEREEAEREFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Tang Kin Nam, Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and the Risk Management Committee and Member of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Aged 59, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director in October 2021 and is currently the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and the Risk
Management Committee, and member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Tang obtained a Bachelor of Arts from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1991 and a master degree in
China Economic Law from the University of Beijing in 1999. He
qualified as a chartered secretary of United Kingdom Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries in 1995.

Mr. Tang has more than 30 years’ experience in corporate
governance and executive management. Mr. Tang had
previously worked for an international Certified Public
Accountant firm where he had specialized in advising clients
on corporate and private trust structures. He then joined TMF
Group in 2000 and became the director and regional head of
international incorporations global business development,
Asia Pacific of TMF Group. Mr. Tang left TMF Group in 2017
to establish Maystar Corporate Solutions Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, to deliver
consultancy and advisory services to clients in relation to their
corporate restructuring, incorporation of overseas companies
and provision of company secretary services.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Wing Suen, Company Secretary and Authorised
Representative

Aged 45, joined the finance and account department of
the Group since June 2022 and has been re-designated as
Financial Controller in November 2022. Ms. Ng obtained a
degree of Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting
and a degree of Master of Corporate Governance from The
Hong Kong Metropolitan University (formerly The Open
University of Hong Kong). She is a chartered secretary, a
chartered governance professional and a fellow member
of The Chartered Governance Institute and The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute. She is also a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms. Ng
has more than 20 years’ experience in accounting, auditing,
treasury, financial controlling and compliance. Prior to joining
the Group, she had worked at several firms of certified public
accountants and listed companies.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ERTHS

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sourcing and
sale of metal minerals and related industrial materials, and
production and sale of industrial products.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the financial year and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, can be found
in the “Chairman’s Statement” section and “Business Review”
section set out on pages 6 to 7 and pages 8 to 12 of this
annual report respectively. These discussions form part of this
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 58 to 59 of this annual report
respectively.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will
be held on 27 August 2025. A notice convening the annual
general meeting will be despatched to the shareholders of the
Company in the manner required by the Listing Rules in due
course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attending and voting at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held 27 August
2025, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company'’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, 17/F., Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 21 August 2025. The register of members of the Company
will be closed from 22 August 2025 to 27 August 2025, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered.

The record date for the purpose of determining the eligibility
of the shareholders to attend and vote at the AGM is therefore
Wednesday, 27 August 2025.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group, is set out on page 184 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 24(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the year are set out in note 24(a) to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2025, the Company has no distributable
reserve calculated (2024: nil).

DONATIONS

Donations to charitable organisation by the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2025 is nil (2024: nil).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Yu-shun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Sun Le

Non-executive Director
Ms. Sun Di

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam

Mr. Tang Kin Nam

Mr. Kwong Wing Ho

In accordance with bye-law no. 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws
and code provision B2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules,
Ms. Sun Le and Mr. Tang Kin Nam will retire from office by
rotation at the AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENT

Details of the directors’emolument during the year are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in this report of the directors, no other
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company, or any entity connected with
any director of the Company, had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2025, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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As at 31 March 2025
RZBZEF=A=+-H

Approximate

percentage of
the Company'’s
issued
Number of Number of share capital
Name of director Capacity and nature of interests shares held  share options held Total interests (Note 1)
AT
BETREZ
BaEat
EEl4 B REREME FRERR 1R 8 B PSR EHE R (Hzt1)
Ms. Sun Le Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 5,040,000,000 = 5,040,000,000 23.90%
REgt FiEElEE 2 Ea (17i2)
Notes: Vg2
1. The approximate percentage of the Company’s issued share 1. EARABREFITRAZBOBT AL RIBEEAA
capital was calculated on the basis of 21,084,072,140 shares of BN ZZE - AF=HA=+—HZ21,084,072,140
the Company as at 31 March 2025. RRRDETE -
2. These shares were beneficially owned by Sheen Success 2k %% 217 FISheen Success Investments Limited &

Investments Limited which was wholly owned by Sun
Le. Accordingly, Sun Le is deemed to be interested in
5,040,000,000 shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

COMPETING INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE CLOSE ASSOCIATES

For the year ended 31 March 2025, none of the Directors or
any of their respective close associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) is considered to have interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group and any other
conflicts of interests, which is required to be disclosed under
the Listing Rules.

SHARE SCHEME

As at 31 March 2025, the Company has not adopted any share
schemes. Further announcement(s) will be made in respect of
any new share schemes to be adopted by the Company when
and if necessary.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the above sections headed “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” and “Share Scheme’, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or their spouse or minor children had any rights to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such rights during the year.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE

SFO

As at 31 March 2025, the following shareholders having
interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company were recorded in the register of interests required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares of the Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
shares held the Company’s
as at 31 March issued share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity and nature of interest 2025 (Note 3)
RIZBZHE (hFERAFNERTRE
=RA=+—H 2B S
BRER A% BipkiEmEtE FriFiRi &8 (H7723)
Sun Le Interest of controlled corporation 5,040,000,000 (Note 1) 23.90%
Bt PRIZERER 2 #a 5,040,000,000 (##&£1)
Sheen Success Investments Limited Beneficial owner 5,040,000,000 (Note 1) 23.90%
BmEBA 5,040,000,000 (##&£1)
Zhou Qiuhong Interest of controlled corporation 3,215,322,140 (Note 2) 15.25%
BIA FR¥EGIEE 2 3,215,322,140 (f1522)
Ying Sheng Investment Co., Ltd Beneficial owner 3,215,322,140 (Note 2) 15.25%
BmEAA 3,215,322,140 (f#a#2)
Notes: Mzt -
1. These shares were beneficially owned by Sheen Success 1. %5 B% 17 ESheen Success Investments Limited 2
Investments Limited which was wholly owned by Sun A » MSheen Success Investments Limited
Le. Accordingly, Sun Le was deemed to be interested in HEERR  FHib RIBEFESKIBERG 12
5,040,000,000 shares under the SFO. B35 150 75 7125,040,000,000% 19 R #E B RE & ©
2. These shares were beneficially owned by Ying Sheng 2. % ER1D AYing Sheng Investment Co., LtdE &
Investment Co., Ltd which was wholly owned by Zhou 75 > MYing Sheng Investment Co., Ltd 5 B FKAT
Qiuhong. Accordingly, Zhou Qiuhong was deemed to be 2BHEF AL REZERBEEA > BRIAL
interested in 3,215,322,140 shares under the SFO. WAR A 113,215,322,1400% AR 15 TP S HE % o
3. The approximate percentage of the Company’s issued share 3. EEARBEBETRAZBNBDLETREBEAR

capital was calculated on the basis of 21,084,072,140 shares of
the Company as at 31 March 2025.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as at 31 March 2025
as required pursuant to section 324 of the SFO. Such other
relevant interest or short positions, if notified to the Company,
would have to be recorded in the said register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336

of the SFO.

BN ZEZAFE=H=+—H=221,084,072,140

RN EHE -

BREXFIREEN RZBE_HF=ZRA=+—
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TR B0 A o {25 A B) AN 2 H A A8 RR A 2
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions as disclosed in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements did not fall under the
scope of “Connected Transactions” or “Continuing Connected
Transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are
required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2025, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company'’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Bye-laws or the applicable laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Bye-laws provided that the Directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts or otherwise in
relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and other officers
of the Company during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for note 25 to the consolidated financial statements, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group or
existed during the year ended 31 March 2025.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year ended
31 March 2025.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers accounted for
approximately 21.9% and 86.4% respectively of the Group's
total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 43.5% and approximately 95.9% respectively of
the Group's total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates or any
shareholders which to the best knowledge of the Directors
who own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The planet Earth and its various resources maintain the life of
all creatures and humans. In the face of dwindling resources,
the Group strongly believes that sustainable development is
the only way out. Therefore, we shoulder the responsibility
of environmental protection through strict compliance with
laws and regulations related to emission. Our uncompromising
commitment to integrate the concept of environmental
protection into the production system is also reflected by
the operation mode of the Waste Recycling Company and a
system for the management of environment, air emission,
water resources, soil, waste and energy.
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EFETHRS

EEAY

RBE_E_HAF=B=+—HLEE > &xQF
WHEIUNFERMA LR BRERNHEME
ERNEBNEERITHZEN

FTERRRMERS

FEBZRARFEAARDR ZIHEMBIES ML
REBARFEE R IR LBEELT21.9%5286.4% ©

rEBZEAMEMED AMER 2 RERE
RS REBRARFERNRBAIEN43.5%RN
95.9% °

REFER BEEF REZEAEEHEA
WRESFAANTHEAE LB EEITRAES%ZIE
AR NAEBOLRERRHEERESER

Emfme

IRIREUER

WIKIRIE R EREE R HREMB LY AERN
T - EHHTZEZNER AEEREAIFE
EREW—RBRTE -HUILHME B RERER
NEME BRETEBRYBRRREGNER 1R
RABTHIETHHRE BER KER 1B B
MR EENGE  RORIRREFRENESH
TELEHERES-

ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 £E¥R 2024/25

25



26

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognize that employees, customers and
business partners are the keys to the sustainable development
of the Group. The Group is committed to building a close and
caring relationship with its employees and business partners
and improving the quality of services to the customers.

With employees being its cornerstone for success and key
to the development of core competency, the Group makes
every effort to ensure its operation is compliant with laws
and regulations related to employee benefits. We also
protect employees’ rights and benefits and provide them
with comprehensive welfare, training and development
opportunities for talent retention. The Group also stays
connected with its customers and suppliers and has ongoing
communication with the customers and suppliers through
various channels such as telephone, electronic mails and
physical meetings to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the
Company'’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the PRC while
the ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. The Group’s establishment and
operations shall accordingly comply with the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year
ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group’s operation has complied with all the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong in all material
respects.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had a total of about 133
employees and directors (2024: 133). The Group’s staff costs,
including directors’ remuneration, amounted to approximately
HK$23,368,000 (2024: approximately HK$20,962,000).

The Group remunerates its employees based on their
competence, performance, experience and prevailing market
rate. Other employee benefits included provident fund
scheme, medical insurance, subsidised training programme,
share scheme as well as discretionary bonus.

The determination of emoluments of the Directors had
taken into consideration of their respective responsibilities
and contribution to the Company with reference to market
conditions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31 March 2025,
the Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman),
Mr. Tang Kin Nam and Mr. Kwong Wing Ho.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Except for code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, which will be
discussed in section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” in the Corporate Governance Report, the Company
has complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2025.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued shares is held by the public
as at the date of this report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Based on the information currently available, the Directors
confirm that there has been no material adverse change in the
financial or trading position of the Group since the end of the
reporting period and up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited acted as auditor of the Company and
audited the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 March 2025.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Crowe (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Yu-shun
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXERBRS

The Board is committed to uphold a high standard in
corporate governance. The Board considers effective corporate
governance is essential to protect shareholders’ interests and
enhance stakeholders’ value. Moreover, the Board is of the
view that good corporate governance will further enhance the
value and culture of the Group, which is to carry out business
activities while minimizing the impact on the environment
and to develop and implement green technology more
effectively and comprehensively.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code”)
contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr.
Ho Yu-shun, an executive director of the Company, has
been appointed as chairman of the Board and has been re-
designated as chief executive officer of the Company with
effect from 1 October 2022. Since then, Mr. Ho Yu-shun has
been serving as both the chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company.

Although for the year ended 31 March 2025, the positions
of chairman and chief executive officer were not separated,
the responsibilities between the two positions were clearly
separated. The Board believes that such structure helps to
provide consistent leadership, facilitates effective business
planning and implementation of long-term business
strategies.

In addition, all major decisions of the Company are made
only after discussion among Board members and appropriate
members of the Board committees and the heads of
departments. The power and authority are not concentrated
in one individual. Moreover, the Board is composed of
experienced members who are not involved in the day to day
management of the Company. They are in a position to and do
provide independent opinions effectively. The Board considers
that in the circumstances having the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer played by the same individual would
not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company.

The Directors will review the Company’s corporate governance
policies and compliance with the CG Code from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report for
the year ended 31 March 2025, which contains the Company’s
ESG information in compliance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules, will be
published on the Company’s and Stock Exchange’s websites at
the same time as the publication of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries with all the Directors, all of
them confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31
March 2025.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management,
leadership and control of the Group. The Board's primary
responsibilities are to formulate long-term corporate
strategies, to establish policies and plans, to oversee
management of the Group, to evaluate the performance of the
Group, to assess the achievement of targets set by the Board
periodically and to review and approve annual and interim
results and other significant financial and operational matters
under the leadership of the chairman of the Group. The Board
is directly accountable to the shareholders of the Company.
The responsibility of day-to-day management and operations
of the Group are delegated to the senior management of the
Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
Directors including two executive directors, namely Mr. Ho
Yu-shun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and Ms. Sun
Le, one non-executive director, namely Ms. Sun Di, and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung
Ngai Lam, Mr. Kwong Wing Ho and Mr. Tang Kin Nam.

The Directors are considered to have a balance of skill and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Changes in the composition of the Board, audit committee
(“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”), nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) and risk management committee
(“Risk Management Committee”) of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this annual
report are detailed on pages 34 to 41 of this annual report.

The section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” sets out the biographical details of the current
Directors and senior management from pages 13 to 17 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the aforesaid, none of the
Directors has any financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between any members of the Board.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company (“Independent Non-executive
Directors”) as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent under the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules.

The Company will provide a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction to each newly appointed director on his/
her first appointment in order to enable him/her to have
appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Directors are continually updated on
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. The Company has provided timely technical
updates and arranged training sessions (whether internally
or externally), including the briefing on the amendments
on the Listing Rules and the news release published by the
Stock Exchange to the Directors. Continuing briefing and
professional development and training for Directors are
arranged where necessary.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information, including monthly Board updates from the
management, regular reports from the Board committees and
briefings on significant legal, regulatory or accounting matters
affecting the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, four regular Board
meetings and the 2024 annual general meeting (2024 AGM")
were held. The attendance records of each Director is set out
as follows:

EFCTEMARRKE
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Number of attendance

HERE
2024
Annual General
Board meetings Meetlng
ZEIMmE
Name of Director EENY EEEEE RRBERE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Ho Yu-shun RS LE 4/4 11
Ms. Sun Le Y Jogun 4/4 1/1
Non-executive Director FEHTES
Ms. Sun Di Kzt 4/4 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REMITE 4/4 11
Mr. Tang Kin Nam WEmELE 4/4 11
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho B ERE 4/4 11

The 2024 AGM of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2024 was held on 28 August 2024. The forthcoming annual
general meeting ("“AGM") of the Company will be held on 27
August 2025 (meeting agenda will be provided in the Notice
of AGM to be issued afterwards). Our Directors, company
secretary and other senior executives of the Company will
attend the AGM together with our external auditors to answer
any questions from the shareholders. All Directors treasure the
opportunity to canvass the views of the shareholders of the
Company at the AGM held annually.

AANBBE_E_NFE=A=+—HLEFEN
TEINFERRBEFAGENRZIZEINFENA
“+N\BET o AABEERRBFAE (TR
RBERE) R _E-_AFN\B+tHEHT
(EZERERENERER  RREFAEE

£) cAABEF ARMEUREMSHKITHA
BERARBNEZEMBHERREFAE
WEIERRNEMRER - 2RBEEHERNEF
BITHWRRBFAT LHHALAARKRER BN

P
Eo

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥T/RES (E1ERE B EA T



CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has
complied with the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of
the CG Code contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules,
except for the deviation from Code Provision C.2.1 for the year
described below.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Ho
Yu-shun has been serving as both of the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2025 and up to the date of this annual report.

Although for the year ended 31 March 2025, the positions
of chairman and chief executive officer were not separated,
the responsibilities between the two positions were clearly
separated. The Board believes that such structure helps to
provide consistent leadership, facilitates effective business
planning and implementation of long-term business
strategies.

In addition, all major decisions of the Company are made
only after discussion among Board members and appropriate
members of the Board committees and the heads of
departments. The power and authority are not concentrated
in one individual. Moreover, the Board is composed of
experienced members who are not involved in the day to day
management of the Company. They are in a position to and do
provide independent opinions effectively. The Board considers
that in the circumstances having the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer played by the same individual would
not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors is appointed for a term of twelve-month
period which automatically renews for successive twelve-
month periods unless terminated by either party by six
months’ notice in writing. All of the non-executive Director
and independent Non-executive Directors are also subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years at the AGMs of the Company in accordance with
the Company’s Bye-laws.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Newly appointed Directors will receive guidelines and
reference materials to enable them to familiarise with the
Group’s business operations and Board’s policies. Additional
training will be provided to those newly appointed Directors
within 18 months of their appointment. The Company is
committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development. Each
Director is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and applicable legal and regulatory requirements
and the governance policies of the Group. All the Directors
also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has specific written terms
of reference that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at
31 March 2025, the Remuneration Committee comprises
four members, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman), Mr. Tang
Kin Nam, Mr. Kwong Wing Ho and one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Ho Yu-shun.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all the directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration; determining the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive directors. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
a set of formal and transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s
websites.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year
ended 31 March 2025 to review the remuneration packages
for Directors. The attendance records of each member is set
out as follows:
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Number of

attendance
Name of member ME R H &R
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman) REM AT (£/E) 1/1
Mr. Tang Kin Nam B Em At 11
Mr. Ho Yu-shun EESTIE e 1/1
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho BB & 1/1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of
reference that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31
March 2025, the Nomination Committee comprises four
members, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tang Kin Nam (Chairman), Mr. Cheung
Ngai Lam and Mr. Kwong Wing Ho and one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Ho Yu-shun.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors, evaluation of board composition,
assessment of the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors and management of the Board succession.
The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s
websites.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) in June 2023 which set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
selection criteria, having regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on range
of diversity perspectives, which would include but not limited
to, gender, age, cultural, educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) in January 2019 to fulfill the duties and
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee as provided in
its terms of reference.

(a)

(b)

Recommended candidates

The Nomination Committee shall consider any and all
candidates recommended as nominees for directors
to it by any directors or shareholders; provided that
in the case of shareholder recommendations, such
recommendations comply with all applicable notice
requirements set forth in the Company’s Bye-laws,
the procedures for a shareholder’s nomination to be
properly brought before a general meeting and the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee may also
consider, in its sole discretion, any and all candidates
recommended as nominees for directors to it by any
source.

Desired qualifications, qualities and skills

The Nomination Committee shall endeavour to
find individuals of high integrity who have a solid
record of accomplishment in their chosen fields
and who possess the qualifications, qualities and
skills to effectively represent the best interests of all
shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their
ability to exercise good judgment, to provide the
commitment to enhancing shareholder value, practical
insights and diverse perspectives. Candidates will
also be assessed in the context of the then-current
composition of the board, the operating requirements
of the Company and the long-term interests of all
shareholders. In conducting this assessment, the
Nomination Committee will, in connection with
its assessment and recommendation of director
candidates, consider diversity and such other factors
as it deems appropriate given the then-current
and anticipated future needs of the board and the
Company, and to maintain a balance of perspectives,
qualifications, qualities and skills on the board. The
Nomination Committee may also consider such other
factors as it may deem are in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The above diversity
perspectives, taking into account the Company’s
business model and needs, are set out in a Diversity
Policy.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(c)

(d)

Independence

The Nomination Committee shall ensure that at
least one-third of the board members (or such other
number of the members of the board as prescribed
by the Listing Rules from time to time) meet the
definition of independent non-executive director. The
Nomination Committee shall annually assess each
nominee for independent non-executive director
by reviewing any potential conflicts of interest that
he or she and their immediate family members (as
defined in the Listing Rules) may have, based on the
criteria for independence set forth in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. A retiring independent non-executive
director who has served the board for a period of nine
consecutive years or more is eligible for nomination by
the board to stand for re-election at a general meeting
provided that he or she is still considered independent
by the board.

Nominee evaluation process

The Nomination Committee will consider as a
candidate any director who has indicated his or her
willingness to stand for re-election and any other
person who is recommended by any shareholders.
The Nomination Committee may also undertake its
own search process for candidates and may retain the
services of professional firms or other third parties
to assist in identifying and evaluating potential
nominees. The Nomination Committee may use any
process it deems appropriate for the purpose of
evaluating candidates which is consistent with those
set forth in its terms of reference, the Company’s
Bye-laws, the corporate governance policy and the
policy described herein; provided that the process
used for evaluating a nominee for each election or
appointment of directors shall be substantially similar
and under no circumstances shall the Nomination
Committee evaluate nominees recommended by a
shareholder pursuant to a process that is substantially
different than that used for other nominees for the
same election or appointment of directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(e)

Nomination procedures

The company secretary shall call a meeting of the
Nomination Committee, and invite nominations
of candidates from board members, if any, for
consideration prior to its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by board members. For filling
a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall
make recommendations for the board’s consideration
and approval. For proposing candidates to stand
for election at a general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall make nominations to the board for
its consideration and recommendation. Until the issue
of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons
shall not assume that they have been proposed by the
board to stand for election at the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the board to stand for election at a
general meeting, a circular will be sent to shareholders.
The circular will set out the names, brief biographies
(including qualifications and relevant experience),
and any other information, as required pursuant to
applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the proposed
candidates. A shareholder can serve a notice to the
board of directors or the company secretary within
the lodgement period of its intention to propose
a resolution to elect a certain person as a director
in accordance with the relevant procedures posted
on the Company’s website. The particulars of the
candidates so proposed will be provided to all
shareholders for information by way of announcement
and/or supplementary circular. A candidate is allowed
to withdraw his or her candidature at any time before
the general meeting by serving a notice in writing
to the board of directors or the company secretary.
The board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for election at any general meeting. Shareholder
proposed resolutions shall take the same form as the
resolutions proposed for the candidates recommended
by the board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the board composition and
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors,
and considered the suitability of those retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the next annual general meeting
as well as the need for a director succession plan. The
Nomination Committee also reviewed the Nomination Policy
and the Diversity Policy and discussed the objectives set for
implementing the latter, and noted that those objectives had
been achieved. The Nomination Committee concluded that
the board composition should continue unchanged.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended
31 March 2025 to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board; assess the independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company; review and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
election of Directors. The attendance records of each member
is set out as follows:
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Number of

attendance
Name of member RE A HE X
Mr. Tang Kin Nam (Chairman) WEmLE (Z/E) 11
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam SREE M A 1/1
Mr. Ho Yu-shun EESE b 1/1
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho BB & 1/1

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31 March 2025,
the Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman),
Mr. Tang Kin Nam and Mr. Kwong Wing Ho.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for assisting the
Board in applying financial reporting and internal control
principles and in maintaining an appropriate relationship
with the Company’s auditor. The Audit Committee is also
delegated with the corporate governance function of the
Board to monitor, procure and manage corporate governance
compliance within the Group. The full terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s and the
Stock Exchange’s websites.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Audit Committee met three times during the year ended
31 March 2025 and the attendance records of each member is
set out as follows:
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Number of
attendance
Name of member REHE H &R
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman) REMILE (F/E) 3/3
Mr. Tang Kin Nam BeEm At 3/3
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho BB &S 3/3

The summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the year:

. reviewed and discussed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2024 and recommended to the Board for approval;

. reviewed the corporate governance compliance with
the CG Code and the disclosure requirements for the
corporate governance report;

. reviewed and discussed the unaudited financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2024 and recommended to the Board for
approval;

. reviewed and discussed with management and auditor
of the Company the accounting policies and practices
which may affect the Group and the scope of the audit;

. reviewed the effectiveness and sufficiency of
the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system of the Group;

. reviewed and approved the remuneration and the
terms of engagement of the Company’s auditor; and
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on
the re-appointment of the Company'’s auditor; and

. engaged a professional consultant to conduct an
internal audit review and risk assessment of the Group.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual report and the annual results announcement for
the year ended 31 March 2025, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee with specific written terms
of reference was established by the Company on 23 November
2015. As at 31 March 2025, the Risk Management Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tang Kin Nam (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam and Mr.
Kwong Wing Ho and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Ho Yu-
shun.

The Risk Management Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the general goals and fundamental policies of
the risk and compliance management, internal control and
risk management and internal audit functions of the Group
and made recommendations to the Board on the same. The
full terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee
are available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange's
websites.

The Risk Management Committee met twice during the
year ended 31 March 2025 to identify risk on the Group’s
operation; to review and recommend to the Board the interim
review reports on risk management and internal control. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:
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Number of

attendance
Name of member [pA=R HERE
Mr. Tang Kin Nam (Chairman) WEBILE (£/F) 2/2
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REE ML 2/2
Mr. Ho Yu-shun IS 8L 2/2
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho BB & 2/2

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 50 to
57 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
(continued)

During the year, the following fees were paid or payable
to Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe”), the auditor of the
Company:

12 BT R a2 BT = (48

REFEERN ENRENERABZBMEEEE
(BR) gstEiEHMARLE (BEEE)) 2
BERWT:

HK$’000
FET

Fees for audit services (Note a) ZERFE 2 ER (fita) 750
Fees for non-audit services (Note b) EZBRB 2 &R (H52b) 190
Total wast 940
Notes: Mzt -
(a) The audit services provided by Crowe. (a) ZERFHBEE SEMR Mo
(b) The non-audit services provided by Crowe. (b) JEHMRBHEE =R S

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2025.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

In order to establish the duties and responsibilities of the
Board in performing its corporate governance functions, the
Board has delegated certain corporate governance functions
to the Audit Committee and the Risk Management Committee
which include the following:

(a) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and directors; and

(e) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognises its responsibilities for maintaining
adequate systems of risk management and internal control
to safeqguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests.
The systems, including a defined management structure
with limits of authority, is designed to help achieve business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised use,
and maintain proper accounting records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use and for
publication. The systems are set up to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement of
financial statements or lost of assets and to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Effective risk management is essential in the long-term
growth and sustainability of the Group’s businesses. The Board
monitors the risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis. It evaluates and determines the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives. An annual review of effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems has
been conducted. The annual review ensured the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group's accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.

The process used to identify, evaluate and manage the
significant risks of the Group is embedded in the Group’s
normal business operations. Organisational structure
is well established with clearly defined authorities and
responsibilities, and the Group has developed various risk
management and internal control policies and procedures for
each business unit to follow. Business units are responsible
for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks associated
with their respective units regularly. The results of assessment
are reported to management which subsequently assesses
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides remedial plan and
monitors the progress of rectification with the assistance of
the head of the business units. The results and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal controls have been
reported to the Audit Committee.

Guidelines have been provided to the directors, officers,
management and relevant staff in handling and disseminating
sensitive and confidential inside information with due care.
Only personnel at appropriate level can have access to
sensitive and confidential inside information.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

In view of the Company’s businesses and scale of operations,
and in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of
conducting periodic reviews of the Company’s internal
controls, the Company has engaged an external consultant to
conduct review on the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems to identify and evaluate significant risks of the
business operations. The Board believes that the involvement
of the external consultant could enhance the objectivity and
transparency of evaluation process. The external consultant
has conducted an annual review to assess the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems for the year ended 31 March 2025
in accordance with the requirements under code provision
D.2 of the CG Code, and according to the scope of review
agreed and approved by the Audit Committee. The review
covered all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and also material risks relating to ESG
matters.

After the review, a report of findings and recommendations
for improvement in relation to the systems has been provided
to the Audit Committee and management. The internal audit
report has been approved by the Audit Committee and
management is required to establish remedial plans and take
required actions to rectify those internal control deficiencies
identified according to the respective risk level and priorities.
Subsequent review will be performed by the external
consultant to monitor the implementation of those agreed
recommendations and to report the results of the follow up
review to the Audit Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Wing Suen (“Ms. Ng") was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 1 August 2022. The biographical
details of Ms. Ng are set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on
page 17 of this annual report. Ms. Ng has duly complied with
the relevant professional training requirements under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2025.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

According to bye-law no. 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do
so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”).

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of
the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to:

(a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting;

(b) circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled
to have notice of any general meeting send to them
any statement of not more than one thousand words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The requisition must be deposited to the Company not less
than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week
before the meeting in case of any other requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company

According to bye-law no. 88 of the Company’s Bye-laws, no
person other than a Director retiring at the general meeting
of the Company shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting of the Company unless a notice signed by
a shareholder of the Company (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting of the Company for which such notice is given of
his/her intention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/
her willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong or at the Company'’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be
at least seven days and that the period for lodgement of such
notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns in writing to the Company Secretary of the Company
at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong at Unit 1102, 11th
Floor, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted its dividend policy, which allows
the shareholders of the Company to share the profits of the
Company whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s
future growth. According to the Company’s dividend policy,
in addition to the final dividends, the Company may declare
interim dividends or special dividends from time to time.

According to the Company’s dividend policy, the Board shall
consider the following factors before proposing and declaring
dividends:

the Group's general financial condition;
the Group's working capital and debt level;
the Group’s liquidity position;

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development
needs;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

the general market conditions;

the general economic conditions and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is
also subject to any restrictions under the Laws of the Bermuda,
the Bye-laws of the Company and any applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

The Company’s dividend policy will be reviewed from time
to time by the Board and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting, the
annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and circulars
and the Company’s website at www.npegroup.com.hk. Enquiries
from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
Investors may write directly to the Company at the Company’s
head office in Hong Kong at Unit 1102, 11th Floor, Shui On Centre,
No. 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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A\ Crowe

BEEE (§2) SEXtMEBHARAR
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

FE REE TSIRET 7R IBEF09E
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to
183, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2025, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2025, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment of trade receivables

Refer to notes 2(h)(i), 2(j) and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting policies

The Key Audit Matter
FRENEE

Trade receivables amounted to approximately HK$132,838,000
as at 31 March 2025.

RIZTRF=A=+—H B E ZRIE443132,838,000
BT

The settlement of one debtor is being subject to a voluntary
debt restructuring repayment plan approved by the court of the
People’s Republic of China.

—REBANBEBEETAPE NRHEME AR EN
BREEHBEARENR -

Management make estimates when assessing impairment
provision of trade receivables. The estimates were made based
on the ageing of the receivable balances, debtors’ credit quality,
likelihood of collection, historical write-off experience and
current market conditions.

ReTh RN E ZRIBNREEER BB FL st - A/
TE‘EJrEﬂﬁAFEHﬁZ%T\IE%E%E’J RE-EHBANEEER E
FRIERYPISEME ~ IB TR EH Se Bk Ky B R T AR ©

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B E RS

RREEE

Eﬁi%?r%ﬁ%*ﬁ#ﬁﬁ BEEHE  BREE
PrRoUBERERNBEARASEENFTE -BESR

I,E\Efﬁ/;ﬁ%aﬁé%%%%éﬁﬁ‘%ﬁﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%

ETEEN RMATSHELEFTRREHEBNE

Bo

FEWE 5 FIRRE

FHE2RGRAMBFIRRMEE2(h ) 20 R17KRE5
HR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bt PREAREENSE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
trade receivables included:

HPIBLAE N E 5 IR R EFTRE E T 84

- obtaining confirmations on a sampling
basis, directly from debtors for the trade
receivables;
MmN E AR E 2RI ER A
ESHERD ;

- inspecting, on a sampling basis, external
documents and evidences to support the
occurrence and completeness of sales to
gain assurance for the outstanding trade
receivables;
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The Key Audit Matter
FRENEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bt EEEREENGE

testing the accuracy of the trade receivables
ageing analysis on a sampling basis.

T A5 R 2t FE U B 5 R T BR e o0 AT B9 ZE B
%o

evaluating management’s assessment on
the recoverability of amount due from
individual debtors with significant balances
past due but not impaired balance by:

S EEENRAEREEMREEARN
B BB A FEWGRIE P WL B 9 5118 75
A

- examining the subsequent
settlement from these individual
debtors on a sampling basis; or
Mt s e sz F @8 pEH AR
HBHE ;5

- for those individual debtors without
any subsequent settlements,
analysing the Group’s business
relationship with them and their
payment history.

AP HBEERNERNES A
Mms> ot BEEEERENES
R RRE A RESE

assessing the management’s basis and
assumptions employed in making estimates
on the impairment provision of the
receivable balances and the extent of loss
allowance required;

TG B IR i 5T R IB A SRRV B E R
KRG EEFHEEERMEANE

ER AR

evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of management’s specialist;
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The Key Audit Matter
B RE

The management engaged a valuation specialist to evaluate the
expected credit loss (“ECL") for trade receivables. Based on the
assessment, the management provided ECL of approximately
HK$40,039,000 on trade receivables, including a specific ECL
of approximately HK$39,130,000 on one debtor of whose
settlement being subject to a voluntary debt restructuring
repayment plan.
EEEZEGESEFTHRKEZRENEREESE (T8
HAEER51R)) - RIBsTE EREM BN E B HNIE5HEER
= B8 ##940,039,000 0 BIEM —REBANEE
TARAE EE5184939,130,00078 70 2 EH A REBT —IEBEE
BREREN B LUEENRIE

We identified this as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because assessing recoverability of debts involves a significant
degree of judgement and estimation by management.

BB ERFREAFE ILHRAHBGREMBREN
B2 MRARTEEBRI AR EIER S R EEEEHE
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Impairment of prepayments and deposits

Refer to note 2(h)(i) and (ii) and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting policies

The Key Audit Matter
MBS EE

Prepayments and deposits amounted to approximately
HK$297,883,000 as at 31 March 2025.
RZE_EZHF=RA=Z=+—HB BENREEREREHNA
297,883,0007 7T ©

Management performed assessment at the end of each
reporting period to consider whether there is any indication
that these prepayments and deposits may be impaired. The
recoverable amounts of these prepayments and deposits are
assessed by the estimate of net cash flows to be received
taking into account the events that have occurred and
circumstances that have changed, historical experience and
current market condition.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bt EEEREENGE

- engaging our valuation specialist to review
and challenge the appropriateness of the
ECL model, key assumptions, and key inputs
adopted by the Group; and
ZELEERY SEEXRANEREES
BIEEA FAREBREAREOAENEE
METEERER &

- testing the accuracy and completeness

of key data sources applied in the ECL
computation by checking to the Group's
supporting information, the relevant
internal information and external data
source, as applicable.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bt PREEAREENGE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
prepayments and deposits included:

BRI RE RIS BEMRINEF S

- obtaining direct confirmations on a
sampling basis, directly from counterparties
for the prepayments and deposits;

Dtk s L E A F 5 BUS H A RIE
RiEENEERER ;

- inspecting, on a sampling basis, external
documents and evidences to support the
existence and completeness of prepayments
and deposits; and
MR E I S R 5B 1R 0 U IF TR
BERBENFERTEN ; &
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Based on the results of management’s impairment assessment,
impairment loss of approximately HK$324,000 have been
recognised by management on prepayments and deposits for
the year ended 31 March 2025.

ﬁfﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ%m% BE_E_RF=A=+—H
LFE - BEE E:fjtﬁﬁﬂléi&&%ﬁﬁwméﬁﬁa #9324,000
HIge

We identified this as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because assessing the recoverable amounts of prepayments
and deposits involve significant degree of judgement and
estimation by management.
B EARREEASE WHARERGRSMB®RERN
2 DU AR S ETREARIA RIS A IO £ 38R0 K&
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

- discussing with management the rationale
and reasonableness of deposits paid.

HERENHENRENERRGEL-

- assessing the management’s basis and
assumptions employed in making estimates
in the impairment provision of the
prepayments and deposits balances and the
extent of impairment loss required.
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Responsibilities of the directors and those charged with
governance for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS
Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B E RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ENR S

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’

use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within
the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
group financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Poon Cheuk Ngai.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 June 2025

Poon Cheuk Ngai
Practising Certificate Number PO6711

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B E RS

. HERNTEESS M EEERNEE
HEBBEUNYHERERTE - BEDN
B RE FANERMHTERRERER
NER RMESEE EENEZAE
EESENMATHES TIF - RMAASH
STEREEREEE

RMESEEANAEERET HPEHE) 585
B BERREAZHURERSFERES 88
HPTEB PR A BHERIBERE KRR

RAUTHEEELANABRIER RERME
FEARBIIMREREEBEER I HE M
BEAFESEMKA S G ERMIBILIERPR
ERMGEMEMEE UREBERNBRT I
R D B FIB IR B SR RER B
I MERIHETE

HEBEEANASBBENEESD  RAIEER
%%Iﬁzﬁﬂsﬁﬂ,ﬁ?éﬁﬂ%%ﬁ%‘%ﬁ’ﬂ%%ﬁ%%%%’
MRS E T FH - WAE R BENR S Pt
BEFE RIFERERTAFARKEELESE
BoHAEBBEERNBRT MRGEBHRER
MRETBEEESFHENNEERRBBEERN
AR HFPREFEERERBBZER-

PEABIZBMRENEABREGBARES
%QO

BEE (F8) gt EHFAERAR
HEESED
5B —_FE_HEA~B”+EA

BER
B 2B E R FP06711

ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 £E¥R 2024/25

57



58

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

o A2 2L
ﬁnﬁh%

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 H#EZE_ZE_RFFE=A=+—HLEE

2025 2024
ZEZhHE —Z O
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
ok FET FAET
Revenue &= 4(a) 470,308 864,305
Cost of sales THE K (474,333) (852,272)
Gross (loss)/profit (E38) EF (4,025) 12,033
Other net income Hg A 258 5 995 3,169
Selling and distribution costs HE R DIHEAE (546) (580)
Administrative expenses THFEX (16,941) (13,620)
Other operating (expenses)/income Hi&E BIx) WA (5,586) 2,018
Loss allowance recognised on trade FEWE S RIBE R
receivables BB A 6(c) (5,186) (32,615)
Impairment loss on property, plantand ~ #)Z%BE KRR & REHRE
equipment 6(c) (10,661) -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEERERIE (3,620) =
Loss from operations RERSIE (45,570) (29,595)
Finance costs =YD N 6(a) (575) (639)
Loss before taxation BRI ARS8 6 (46,145) (30,234)
Income tax FriSiR 7(a) 47 (947)
Loss for the year FHEE (46,098) (31,181)
Attributable to: THIALENM:
Owners of the Company KRABHEEB A (45,881) (30,782)
Non-controlling interests FEER T (217) (399)
(46,098) (31,181)
Loss for the year attributable TATEEAEEERN
to owners of the Company E518 (45,881) (30,782)
HK Cent HK Cent
Al A1l
Loss per share SREE 17
Basic and diluted EARRKEE (0.218) (0.146)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these WM ZHiEAZSESHMBRERZAEMID o

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GrERmREMEREN @R

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=HB=+—HLFE

2025 2024
“ERE “—Z2ThF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Loss for the year FHEHE (46,098) (31,181)
Other comprehensive expenses FRAZHMEEMS:Z
for the year
Items that may be reclassified RERAEENDEEERZIES !
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on HENBRARMBRREEZ
translation of financial statements ERER
of subsidiaries (4,628) (26,511)
Other comprehensive expenses for FRZHMEEHES  NFEZERIE
the year, net of nil tax (2024: nil) (ZEZHE &) (4,628) (26,511)
Total comprehensive expenses FAEEMAZLEE
for the year (50,726) (57,692)
Attributable to: THANLEMS:
Owners of the Company KRABHEE A (50,564) (57,575)
Non-controlling interests FEER T (162) (117)
(50,726) (57,692)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
tr MBI R R

AT31MARCH2025 WZ-ZE-_R&E=HA=+—H

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

2025 2024
“ERE —EEF
Notes HKSs’000 HKS'000
Kz FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment MERRE REE 13(a) 27,906 27,634
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13(b) 4,656 12,793
Goodwill mE 14 - =
Other intangible asset HthmpEE 15 = =
Trade receivables U E 5718 17 17,340 24,024
Deferred tax assets IR TEE A 23(b) 39 39
49,941 64,490
Current assets RBIEE
Inventories A= 16 41,858 25,979
Trade receivables U E 5718 17 115,498 147,974
Prepayments, deposits and FENRE RS
other receivables HMEWRRIE 18 297,919 315,409
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 19(a) 3,134 6,503
458,409 495,865
Current liabilities REIAE
Trade payables i 3N=RZE SE] 20 88,479 74,145
Accruals and other payables EstERREMEMRE 27 41,800 52,025
Lease liabilities HE&aE 22 - 1,626
Tax payable FETRIE 23(a) 2,351 3,561
132,630 131,357
Net current assets MENBEEFE 325,779 364,508
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTHER 375,720 428,998




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBERRR

AT31MARCH2025 RZE_H&#=HA=+—H

2025 2024
ZE-RE =Sl 5= 5
Notes HKS$’000 HKS'000
Kzt FET FAET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEaR 22 = 2,552
Deferred tax liabilities FIERRTEE (& 23(b) 66 66
66 2,618
Net assets BEFE 375,654 426,380
Equity g
Equity attributable to owners NN HER NEIERE R
of the Company
Share capital &N 24(b) 4,217 4,217
Reserves EE 380,850 431,414
385,067 435,631
Non-controlling interests JEIERG (9,413) (9,251)
Total equity RES4EER 375,654 426,380

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 25 June 2025.

Mr. Ho Yu-shun
AIS2EEE

Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

A CE_RHEANB TR ARKREE S E R

EiTo

Ms. Sun Le
B’
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
rEEmEER

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 #H#E_E_RE=-H=1+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATEA AR
Non-
Share Share Merger Capital ~ Statutory Contributed  Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserves surplus reserve profits Total interests equity

Ra  ROEE  AHEE  ASEE  AEEE  REER ERGE  RIEA m REREE  EEEE
HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSU00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSUOD  HKSOOO  HKSUOO  HKSOOD
Fén  FEr  THn  TEn  TEn  TEm  TEn  TEn  TEn TEn TEn

At 1 April 2023 RIZZ=FEME—-H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7851 16,972 31,960 (20,571) 412,329 493,206 (9134) 484,072
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (30,782) (30,782) (399) (31,181)
Exchange differences arising on BERRARMERE

translation of financial statements EEVERER

of subsidiaries - - - - - - (26,793) - (26,793) 282 (26,511)
Total comprehensive expenses FRZARLEE

for the year - - - - - - (26,793) (30,782) (57,575) (117) (57,692)
Transfer from retained profits to HRGEHBRE

statutory reserves HEEE - - - - 1,060 - - (1,060) - - -
Utilisation of reserve HAkEE - - - - (828) - - 828 - - -
At 31 March 2024 R-B-mE

=B=+-H 417 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 17,204 31,960 (47,364) 381,315 435,631 (9,251) 426,380

At 1 April 2024 RZB-MEMB—H 4,217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 17,204 31,960 (47,364) 381,315 435,631 (9,251) 426,380
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (45,881)  (45,881) 217)  (46,098)
Exchange differences arising on BRERBARMBER

translation of financial statements EEVERER

of subsidiaries - - - - - - (4,683) - (4,683) 55 (4,628)
Total comprehensive expenses FREARTEE

for the year - = = = = S (4,683) (45,881) (50,564) (162) (50,726)
Transfer from retained profits to HRARNERE

statutory reserves EERE - - - - 34 - - (34) - - -
Utilisation of reserve ARG - - - - (1,217) - - 1,217 - - -
At 31 March 2025 RZEZHE

=B=+-H 4,217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 16,021 31,960 (52,047) 336,617 385,067 (9,413) 375,654

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these MBI ZMisEAZSESMBRERZAAMRITD
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
rEaREMER

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 H#E_ZE_FF=HA=+—HILEE

2025 2024
ZEZhHE =S 1t S
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000
ok FHET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REES
Loss before taxation PRI AIES 18 (46,145) (30,234)
Adjustments for: MUTBEMEH 2B
Finance costs =YD N 6(a) 575 639
Written off of property, MDEE -~ MR B R 58 i EE
plant and equipment 6(c) 35 33
Depreciation for property, ME-BEREZEZ
plant and equipment e 6(c) 2,823 2,222
Depreciation for right-of-use assets BREEEZIE 6(c) 7,421 7,111
Loss allowance recognised on FEW B Z I8
trade receivables ERREERE 6(c) 5,186 32,615
Loss allowance recognised/ & e MBI
(reversal of loss allowance) on EEREIEEE
deposits and other receivables (BB (o) 6(c) 324 (752)
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) FEME, (R E)
on inventories 6(c) 4,830 (2,413)
Impairment loss on property, plant MEBEMEREZR
and equipment ER518 10,661 -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEERERIE 3,620 =
Loss allowance recognised on FE U FE 12 IS #E 2 TR IE
amount due from a non-controlling EREREIEEE
interest 6(c) 432 411
Loss on lease modification HEENGE 6(c) - 736
Interest income FEWA 5 (478) (436)
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) PER &R, Caf]) 58 575 (1,139)
Operating cash flows before movements EE & B B[]
in working capital RKERE M (10,141) 8,793
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL EEESES
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEZ (Gm R (22,282) 19,625
Decrease in trade receivables FEU B 5 FRIE 2 L 23,681 1,090,300
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FBNMIE TR
deposits and other receivables HthEWsIE>
b (80 10,257 (8,984)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables ENESHIEZ
@, el 15,627 (1,131,058)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals FESTE R &
and other payables HhfERRIEZ
CRiZ) /181 (9,096) 23,104

ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 £E¥R 2024/25



64

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

2025 2024
—E_RE =Sl e = 5
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000
Kz FET FAET
CASH GENERATED FROM REKEZRE
OPERATIONS 8,046 1,780
Income tax paid BEFER
- PRC — R 23(a) (1,135) (505)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RERETHZREFEE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6,911 1,275
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEEE
Interest received BWFE 46 25
Payment for the purchase of TNEEYE -BER
property, plant and equipment HtE 2 RIB 13(a) (10,453) (1,983)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ARBREEHZHREFEE
ACTIVITIES (10,407) (1,958)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HERREEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS W BEE (3,496) (683)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REVMZRERREEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 6,503 7,532
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXRFAEIEE
RATES CHANGES 127 (346)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERZRERREEEY
END OF THE YEAR 19(a) 3,134 6,503
Major non-cash transaction FEFRERS !
The lease payment for 2025 with amounted approximately —Z_HAFZHEREEL7,714,0008 7T (=

HK$7,714,000 (2024: approximately HK$8,488,000) and = ”PU%E : 498,488,000/ 70) K IE(T & 5 B
trade payables amounted approximately HK$360,000 (2024:  360,00078 7t (Z 2 Z U 4F  4915,941,000757T) B 82
approximately HK$15,941,000) were off set with the trade FEUTE 5 FIEIEEH

receivables.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these WM ZHiEAZSESHMBRERZAEMID o

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|'\

=Rkt e ES:

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 #HE_—E_RFE=H=1+—HILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

New Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. The Company'’s registered
office is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the principal place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company is located at
Unit 1102, 11/F, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries of
the Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretation
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“"HKFRS Accounting Standards”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies (Cap 622) Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Material accounting policy information
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards
which are mandatorily effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from the initial application
of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the
current accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2025 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”).

Items included in the financial statements
of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD"), rounded to the nearest
thousand except for per share data. Hong Kong
dollar is the Company’s functional currency
and the Group’s presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS Accounting Standards
requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various
other factors believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRS Accounting Standards
that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note
31.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held
by the Group and other parties) are considered.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an entity if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
elements of control.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
the accounting policies used into line with
the Group’s accounting policies. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. REBEREAGHBERER
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (48)

INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of
the Company. Total comprehensive income
or expenses of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRS Accounting Standards ). Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)
(i), unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R ER AR MY 5E

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(d)

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (“CGUs”"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represents
the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the CGUs (or group of
CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro - rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or group of CGUs), except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below the highest of its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), value in
use (if determinable) and zero. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. Any impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. REBEREAGHBERER
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (48)
INFORMATION (continued)

(d)  Goodwill (continued) d BEHE @
On disposal of the relevant CGU or any RHEEMREELEEURREE
of the CGU within the group of CGUs, the FEMNANRTERREELEEMN
attributable amount of goodwill is included in R BERGEERETHERZ
the determination of the amount of profit or BaEsENFATERN - BREEE
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of ERTELEMN (FREELEBMN
an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within AR NIREELEBUB T Z2ETR
a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill RO ERESBEMHEER
disposed of is measured on the basis of the (HREELEMN BFRERE
relative values of the operation (or the CGU) ELBA (FIREELEMAR) 3P
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or DZEBEBENE BRIEAERSE
the group of CGUs) retained, unless the Group MR E M S A R B R BR B HY
can demonstrate that some other method EXBERNEE-
better reflects the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of.

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) ME BB K& E

The following items of property, plant
and equipment for own use, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(h)(ii)):

TIERYME-BEARRHFEER

(FER IR BRA BRI
EXRERE (RKHFE2(h)(i0) 5
R

= interests in leasehold land and = RAEBIEAMERERT
buildings where the Group is the ERAEANEE L KRiIE

registered owner of the property
interest (see note 2(g));

- right-of-use assets arising from leases
over leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of
the property interest; and

- other items of plant and equipment,

Foogm (RMfEE209))

= FEBWIFYERTE T
RAEANBEEYENES
FREERNEAREE , &

- Hithg B MR EEE > 81F

including right-of-use assets arising MEERERRENEEMN
from leases of underlying plant and EEXNEREEE (RN
equipment (see note 2(g)). 2(g)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. REBEREAGHBEER
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (48)
INFORMATION (continued)

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:
Plant, machinery and  5%-33%

equipment
Furniture and fixtures  20%-25%
Office equipment 20%-33%
Computer equipment  20%-33%
Motor vehicles 20%-30%
Leasehold Over the shorter of
the remaining term
of the lease and the

improvements

estimated useful life
of 4 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of an
item of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. REBEREAGHBERER
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (48)
INFORMATION (continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Construction in progress represents
property, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes, which are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment losses.
Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Construction
in progress are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for their intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(f)

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination
with finite useful lives are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
that are acquired are stated at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite
life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they
are available for use and their estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Customer relationship 5 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. REBEREAGHBERER
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (48)

INFORMATION (continued)

(f)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic benefits
are expected from use or disposal. Gains
and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, is recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

(f)
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(9) Leases (9) e
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses 2&%@@53/\@“'3 R 8A A R AT %
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. FHECEHENBIHE K&

The Group will reassess whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease only if the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(9)

Leases (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and do not
include a purchase option and leases of low-
value assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised at the
commencement date of the lease, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments (less any lease
incentives receivable) payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred. Lease payments also include
amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees; the exercise
price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and
payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

After initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective
interest method.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(9)

Leases (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, and is reduced by any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes
2(e) and 2(h)(ii)), except for the right-of-use
assets related to leasehold land and buildings
where the Group is the registered owner of
the leasehold interest are carried at cost in
accordance with note 2(e).

If the lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to the Group by the end of
the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Group will exercise a
purchase option, the Group shall depreciate
the right-of-use asset from the commencement
date to the end of the useful life of the
underlying asset. Otherwise, the Group shall
depreciate the right-of-use asset from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end
of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the
underlying leased asset at the end of the
lease term, upon exercising purchase option,
the cost of the relevant right-of-use asset
and the related accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss is transferred to the
appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(9)

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

Leases (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately from
the right-of-use assets in accordance with
the accounting policy applicable to financial
asset measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the initial fair value and
the nominal value of the deposits is accounted
for as additional lease payments made and is
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The Group presents right-of-use assets, that do
not meet the definition of investment property,
in “property, plant and equipment”, the same
line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned. Right-of-use assets that meet
the definition of investment property are
presented within “investment properties”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(9)

Leases (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is
a change in future lease payments arising from
a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments, or there is a change in the
Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee,
by discounting the revised lease payments
using an unchanged discount rate, unless
the change in lease payments results from a
change in floating interest rates. In that case,
the lessee shall use a revised discount rate
that reflects changes in the interest rate. When
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option, the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate, being
the interest rate implicit in the lease for the
remainder of the lease term, or the Group's
incremental borrowing rate at the date of
reassessment, if the interest rate implicit in the
lease cannot be readily determined. When the
lease liability is remeasured in either of these
ways, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(9)

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

Leases (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) and that is not accounted for as
a separate lease. In this case, the consideration
in the modified contract is allocated to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component
and the associated non-lease components are
included in the respective lease components.
The lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position. In the
consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease
liabilities is determined as the present value
of contractual payments that are due to
be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HNEBEERBEAGHBREN

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (%)

INFORMATION (continued)

(h)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (h) CEFEEREERE

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) THRTAZIEEEE

The Group recognises a loss allowance NEERIZEIHER A 2
for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) Z2emEE (BFERERIA
on the financial assets measured at SEEY BWEZHRIE
amortised cost (including cash and K H e IR FRIE) HESRTFE R
cash equivalents, trade receivables and =Ek1E ((FREEEEE))
other receivables). RIS IE B o
Other financial assets measured at BAnESIEZHMESR
fair value are not subject to the ECL EEBEETHEBEER
assessment. BEF(h o
Measurement of ECLs JEHAfEERIBZ 2
ECLs are a probability-weighted EHEEBEEAEMIA
estimate of credit losses over TBERFEHNESHBENE
the expected life of the financial EINEHKTZ2EEBEE
instrument. Credit losses are measured EEBELEMBERRS
as the present value of all expected RER (BPIRIBE NN T &R
cash shortfalls (that is, the difference EECRENELLAEEH
between the cash flows due to the BHERIZEEREZ
Group in accordance with the contract Mz Z=%) 2REF 20

and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are IR B E A BIFER
discounted using the following THREIRERIRTERAIR &
discount rates where the effect of R2ER

discounting is material:

= fixed-rate financial assets, = BEMEZZME
trade receivables and other E EWESHRIELL
receivables: effective interest R E A PEURERIE © 4]
rate determined at initial IBEREEE 2
recognition or an approximation BEA = HR
thereof; & ;
= variable-rate financial assets: = FEAESHE
current effective interest rate. ERTERME.
The maximum period considered et EREEBERME
when estimating ECLs is the maximum BEzREHEALXEER
contractual period over which the HEERRZZEEGHOH
Group is exposed to credit risk. i o
In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into REtERAEEHER &
account reasonable and supportable EEEETEEESMTHB
information that is available without SHARENTEAERS
undue cost or effort. This includes ZHaERSER - ILIBEAE
information about past events, current ERABFESE4 -RERIR
conditions and forecasts of future R EAR T TER Z Bkl o

economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the

following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result
from possible default events
within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial

instrument.

Loss allowances for trade receivables
are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on trade
receivables are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting

date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportably including
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available,
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

- existing or forecast changes
in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the
Group;

- an actual or expected internal
credit rating downgrade for the
borrower;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

(continued)

- an actual or expected significant
change in the operating results
of the borrower;

- significant increases in credit risk
on other financial instruments of
the same borrower;

- significant changes in the value
of the collateral supporting
the obligation or in the quality
of third-party guarantees or
credit enhancements, which
are expected to reduce the
borrower’s economic incentive
to make scheduled contractual
payments or to otherwise have
an effect on the probability of a
default occurring; and

- significant adverse changes in
the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower.

The Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk
is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECLs
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical
data and forward -looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.
The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking
information.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 2(r)(ii) is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on
the amortised cost (that is, the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of
the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. RUBEREAGHHEER

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (48)
INFORMATION (continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (h)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets
(continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

significant financial difficulties
of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that
the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the
technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on
the debtor; or

- the purchase or origination of a
financial asset at a deep discount
that reflects the incurred credit
losses; or

- the disappearance of an active
market for a that financial
assets because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HRUBEREAGHBERENR
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (48)
INFORMATION (continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (h) SEGEREERE (B
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) T T A ZEEEIS (&
(continued)
Write-off policy BB BUR
The gross carrying amount of a EA®BEMR AR kO
financial asset is written off (either 15 AEEB S W (35
partially or in full) to the extent HEH) SMEE Y EELE
that there is no realistic prospect of EoZBERES HIEEALE
recovery. This is generally the case ERCEENREEEDS

when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate

sufficient cash flows to repay the e . &
amounts subject to the write-off. ERESEEHNEWER

Financial assets written off may still ﬁ???%%ﬂ%ﬂﬁ F WARIERE
be subject to enforcement activities Rz

under the Group's recovery procedures,

taking into account legal advice where

appropriate.

FELEHREREZIW
ARBREZEEMEZ S
BHoEMENEREENT

Subsequent recoveries of an asset g 18 W Bl SRl 88 2 & &
that was previously written off are B2 U [B] HA 8 7E 48 2 A M B3
recognised as a reversal of impairment 2R B -

in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (ii) JEL A EEHE

Goodwill, intangible assets that are BE N HEREINFEERER
not yet available for use and intangible RENEBFEERAER
assets that have an indefinite useful life BERAESHENETEE
are tested annually for impairment, or FETRERE MEEE
more frequently if events or changes N E RS EEE TS H A A
in circumstances indicate that they ISR (G 0 Bl & 5B 48
might be impaired. Other assets are TREAR - Y3 EH
tested for impairment whenever events EREEETEESEA
or changes in circumstances indicate MBI B S E e
that the carrying amount may be FRERS

recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. RANEEREAGHHEEH
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (#8)
INFORMATION (continued)
(h)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (h) EEFREREERE (@
(continued)
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (ii) M EERE ()
(continued)

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

- other intangible asset;

- goodwill;

- prepayments and deposits; and

- investments in subsidiaries in

the Company’s statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable
amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments
of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). A portion
of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (for example,
head office building) is
allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if the allocation
can be done on a reasonable
and consistent basis, or to
the smallest group of (cash-
generating units) if otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

92

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HRUBEREAGHBEREN
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (#&)
INFORMATION (continued)
(h)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (hy GEEBRBEERE @
(continued)
(if) Impairment of non-financial assets (i) M EERE ()
(continued)
= Recognition of impairment R EEE
losses
An impairment loss is EEENMBRE
recognised in profit or loss EXBUZREE
whenever the carrying =R HE AU el & 28
amount of an asset, or the B > Bl 5018 7 PR 50 R
cash-generating unit to BEEE -REELES

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying
amount of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

- Reversal of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim Financial Reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(h)

(i)

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(iif) Interim financial reporting and
impairment (continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period
relates.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process
of production for such sale or in the form of
materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. REBEREAGHBERER
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (48)
INFORMATION (continued)

(i)

(j)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are initially
measured at their transaction prices. Trade
receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
All receivables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, less allowance for expected credit
losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

(i)

(4)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(k)

m

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
banks and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (ECLs) in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(h)(i).

Cash at bank excludes bank balances that are
subject to regulatory restrictions that result in
such balances no longer meeting the definition
of cash.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. REBEREAGHBERER
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (48)

INFORMATION (continued)

(m) Derecognition of financial assets (m) #RUEBIETHEE
The Group derecognises a financial asset only EENREERRMBEERENEL
when the contractual rights to the cash flows AN ERE IEESHMEELDS
from the asset expire, or when it transfers HREERAENEAEDRARR
the financial asset and substantially all the El#FFS BN AEBR TR
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to IERZETHEE MAERE
another entity. If the Group neither transfers mERTRRDSHESENEARID
nor retains substantially all the risks and BB R B3k > o 4 4B S B iR
rewards of ownership and continues to control E ARERERIANZEEZRY
the transferred asset, the Group recognises its R Ao B Al BE 7B 32 (9 Y & BR M 50
retained interest in the asset and an associated HEEaE - MAEERYE E%Egﬁ
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the MEERAENEAEDERK
Group retains substantially all the risks and o Q|J$%@§|fnaﬁ§m$n§§§ ’
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial TEE WM ERIERRE AL
asset, the Group continues to recognise FER
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
On derecognition of a financial asset measured R R IR B AT EN SR/
at amortised cost, the difference between BEER EEEEE@E@BW&F’EH&
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of RERENEEGNIEm R
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

(n) Derecognition of financial liabilities (n) RILHERERMEE

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(o)

Employee benefits

(1)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by
employees. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. REBEREAGHBERER
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (48)

INFORMATION (continued)

(p) Income tax (p) FriSif

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively. Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(p)

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided that those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, the entity has sufficient taxable temporary
differences relating to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, which
will result in taxable amounts against which
the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can
be utilised.

EUEEREAEHEEEH

(&)

(p)

FRiS#t (48)

BETFTAERZAINERSI FRE
RIERIBEERFAAIEENESE
(LU % 3R B ) AE B A5 FE aR 1R it
NMLZBEERNTHAERR
19T LURESE - REFFESR R 0B
RERMELEZELERNBEEZR
RIERR @ SR HRAERR
ERERBOD B EIEFEE
EHE—RHEEFME—ERNE
B > 3 FRHAFE T 0 R B &=
HEELO 2 E—AER R ST
HIEERAEEEEE 2 MBRIER
Rl g A Z BB A D - 15T E
RERRRNEKERESAFTHED
REBZRBHBIERBRAEEZ
RIETRIBE ERRA Lt AR 2 &
# ZEBRAFUER -MBHER
B — R B AR BRI ER
MEFER HRELERTERAZR
ERAMR IR R E AR R/
FERINEER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(p) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are:

- temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax
purposes;

- temporary differences arising from the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not
part of a business combination) and
do not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences;

- temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures to the extent that
the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in
the future and taxable profits will be
available; and

- temporary differences related to
income taxes arising from tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted
to implement the Pillar Two model
rules published by the Organisation
for Economic Co-operation and
Development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if a group entity has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, a group entity intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities,
which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax
treatments, the Group considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. If it is probable that
the taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment, the Group shall determine the
taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits or tax rates
consistently with the tax treatment used or
planned to be used by a group entity in its
income tax filings. If it is not probable that the
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment, the Group shall reflect the effect
of uncertainty in determining the related
taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits or tax rates, by using
either the most likely amount method or the
expected value method, depending on which
method the Group expects to better predict
the resolution of the uncertainty.

2.
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and
onerous contracts

(1)

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more certain
future events not wholly within the
control of the Group is also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the
Group has a contract under which
the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to
be received from the contract. The
cost of fulfilling a contract comprises
the costs that relate directly to the
contract, which consist of both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials); and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts --for example, an allocation
of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling that contract. Provisions
for onerous contracts are measured
at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the net cost of fulfilling
with the contract. Before a separate
provision for an onerous contract is
established, the Group recognises any
impairment loss that has occurred on
assets used in fulfilling the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. REBEREAGHBERER
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (48)
INFORMATION (continued)

(r)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would
be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer at contract inception, and
interest income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the
practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS
15 and does not adjust the consideration
for any effects of a significant financing
component if the period of financing is 12
months or less.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing
goods or services to a customer, the Group
determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (that is, the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods or services to be provided by the other
party (that is, the Group is an agent).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(r)

Revenue and other income (continued)
Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is a principal if it controls the
specified good or service before that good or
service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance
obligation is to arrange for the provision of
the specified good or service by another party.
In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another
party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an
agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of
any fee or commission to which it expects to
be entitled in exchange for arranging for the
specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services,
then the amount of revenue recognised
is an appropriate proportion of the
total transaction price under the
contract, allocated between all the
goods and services promised under
the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(r)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Principal versus agent (continued)

(i)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues under the effective interest
method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For
financial assets (other than purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial
assets) measured at amortised cost that
are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (that is, gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2(h)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated into the functional currency of
a group entity at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional
currency of a group entity at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss, except those
arising from foreign currency borrowings used
as effective hedge a net investment in a foreign
operation which are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated into the functional currency of a
group entity using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates and are not re-
translated. The transaction date is the date
on which a group entity initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the foreign operations are translated at
exchange rates prevailing on the reporting
date.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. REBEREAGHBERER
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (48)

INFORMATION (continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)
The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions are
used. Statement of financial position items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired on or after 1 April
2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve,
except to the extent that the translation
difference is allocated to non-controlling
interests. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a
foreign operation acquired before 1 April 2005
is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
lost of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does
not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences is re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and is
not recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HRUBEREAGHBEREN
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY (#&)
INFORMATION (continued)
(t) Related parties (t) REAL
(i) A person, or a close member of that (i) BT AL BlsZ A5
person’s family, is related to the Group Z AN TRGEBTNREMR
if that person: BEAEBFRRE
(a) has control or joint control over (a) £ 51l 5% £ (7] 4% 5l A<
the Group; &8 ;
(b) has significant influence over (b) HAEBRBEEAT
the Group; or 25
() is a member of the key (0) RAEBENKER
management personnel of the BREZFTEEE
Group or the Group's parent. ABo
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any (ii) W& NIMERGELE > Bz

of the following conditions applies:

(@) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

(b) One entity is an associate
or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group
of which the other entity is a
member).

(c) Both the entity and the Group
are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third
entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(t)

(u)

Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(continued)

(e) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the
Group.

(f) The entity is controlled or
jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i).

(9) A person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(h) The entity or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a
person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the discrete financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
chief executive officer (the chief operating
decision maker) for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(u)

(v)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Interest rate benchmark reform

When the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of a financial asset or financial
liability measured at amortised cost changes
as a result of interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group updates the effective interest rate
of the financial asset or financial liability to
reflect the change that is required by interest
rate benchmark reform. A change in the basis
for determining the contractual cash flows is
required by interest rate benchmark reform if,
and only if, both these conditions are met:

(@) the change is necessary as a direct
consequence of interest rate
benchmark reform; and

(b) the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis, i.e.
the basis immediately preceding the
change).

When changes are made to a financial asset
or financial liability in addition to changes to
the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows required by interest rate benchmark
reform, the Group first updates the effective
interest rate of the financial asset or financial
liability to reflect the changes required by
interest rate benchmark reform. The Group
then applies the policies on accounting
modifications to the additional changes.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
Group’s financial annual period beginning on or after 1
April 2024:

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related Amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
and Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

The Group has not applied any new standards and
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that
are not yet mandatorily effective for the current
accounting period, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4., WEEOERE

(a) Revenue
(i) Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from

(a) U &=
(i) e 73 3 HF

BREZEMDOHERGH

contracts with customers by major Wil :
products is as follows:
2025 2024
—ERE “EIE
HKs’000 HKS000
FAET FAET
Revenue from contracts  EHAMFEIRGERFE155%
with customers within HERNZER &M NE
the scope of HKFRS 15
Sourcing and sale of metal X NIHEZBREY K
minerals and related TR T EER
industrial materials 366,084 731,918
Production and sale of SERBETXRER
industrial products 104,224 132,387
470,308 864,305
Disaggregated by BERZMIBMUE DT
geographical location
of customers
- Hong Kong (place of — &% (G
domicile) - &
— Other Asian countries —H M EE MBI =R 31,834 -
- PRC except Hong Kong —HE (FHRIN 438,474 864,305
470,308 864,305

Revenue from the above categories are
recognised at point in time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

4, REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (continued)

(i) Revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date

All sales contracts with customers
are for periods of one year or less.
As permitted by practical expedient
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these contracts for the
remaining unsatisfied performance
obligations is not disclosed.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by
divisions, which are organised by business
lines. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to
the Group's chief executive officer (the chief
operating decision maker) for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the
following three reportable segments.

(i) Sourcing and sale of metal minerals
and related industrial materials;

(ii) Production and sale of industrial
products; and

(iii) Others

Others segment represents business activities
and operating segments not separately
reported, including provision of logistics
services.

4. WaEKkDEHRS (@)

(@ W= (@)
(i) FRHIRAKAE R E A
FRERIE R EAIERZ W

2z

Im

PREERHESNRE—
FHURN - MBEBMBRS
ERIF1SEMBRER)
OB N RBITZEANE
EMAEEZFANZIR
SEEKTUIRE

(b) DRSS
FEBBOBREERER MOE
AREZERNER - ERERD
Fo ke R IR T T B 4 £ B 1T B AR =
(FBEERRAN) AMERER
ZAR—B FEEEE5 T =
(EREX:TiE D

(i) RBERIEEEZEEY &A
A LEIRE

(ii) TERHETERES, &

(i) Hfth
HMpBETREB2RNOER

EEREED R BREEEY AR
f%o

ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 £E¥R 2024/25

115



116

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R ER AR MY 5E

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

4.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s chief executive officer
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwill, other
intangible asset, inventories, trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables
and deferred tax assets of each segment.
Segment liabilities include lease liabilities,
trade payables, accruals and other payables,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities of each
segment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is gross profit less selling and distribution costs
of each segment.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment profits, the Group’s chief
executive officer is provided with segment
information concerning revenue, depreciation,
impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment, impairment loss on right-of-use
assets finance costs, income tax expense and
additions to non-current segment assets used
by the segments in their operations. Inter-
segment sales are priced with reference to
price charged to external parties for similar
orders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WmERRkDSERS (E)
(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DERS @
Segment results, assets and liabilities DIEEE BEREE (B)
(continued)
The accounting policy information of the KENFR G BERE R HE T2
operating segments are the same as the Pz REBZ EAGFTBERER
Group's material accounting policy information GEIEIE
described in note 2.
Information regarding the Group's reportable BHEZZTHRFERIZSIOF=A
segments as provided to the Group’s chief —t+—HBHLEEFE BEFTAERT
executive officer for the purposes of resources BBHIEE RS AT EDERIT
allocation and assessment of segment ZAREET 2| EERHIN
performance for the years ended 31 March TS S
2025 and 2024 are set out below:
2025
“ECRE
Sourcing
and sale of
metal
minerals Production
and related and sale of
industrial industrial
materials products Others Total
RERHE
EBBEMK fERHE
MR IERER TXRAER Hth st
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FAET FET
Reportable segment revenue REINAZFZ
from external customers EES G-l 366,084 104,224 - 470,308
Reportable segment 2R EEF
profit/(loss) (55) 1,160 (5,731) - (4,571)
Depreciation for property, Y% HER
plant and equipment REBITE - (2,823) - (2,823)
Depreciation for FREEENE
right-of-use assets - (7,421) - (7,421)
Impairment loss on property, 1% B = K%
plant and equipment HERE - (10,661) = (10,661)
Impairment loss on FERREERERSE
right-of-use assets - (3,620) - (3,620)
Finance costs RE A - (575) - (575)
Income tax credit Frg Mg R - 47 47
Reportable segment assets A 2RNBEE 359,619 144,107 503,733
Additions to non-current FRREIFRS
segment assets DEE
during the year - 14,094 - 14,094
Reportable segment OERHEER
liabilities (79,796) (45,829) (3,559) (129,184)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

WKk RS (&)

(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DERS @)
Segment results, assets and liabilities TAEEE BEREE (B)
(continued)
2024
“TNF
Sourcing
and sale of
metal
minerals Production
and related and sale of
industrial industrial
materials products Others Total
FRERHE
EBENK FERHEE
HETERM TXRER Hitr st
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
Reportable segment revenue REINAZFZ
from external customers EEL: G-l 731,918 132,387 - 864,305
Reportable segment profit 7] 2R EHF 4,617 6,836 - 11,453
Depreciation for property, 1% WE R&ET
plant and equipment E = (2,222) = (2,222)
Depreciation for FREBEENE
right-of-use assets - (7.111) - (7.111)
Finance costs REM A - (639) - (639)
Income tax expense PREMEE % - (947) - (947)
Reportable segment assets ~ B] 2R EBE 351,023 201,379 8 552,410
Additions to non-current FRREFRE
segment assets DREE
during the year - 6,410 - 6,410
Reportable segment ERAEERE
liabilities (60,825) (66,218) (3,560) (130,603)

There are no inter-segment sales during the
years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

BE_ZE_AFER_ZT_NE=
B=+—HIEEE > wEDEBH

o

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

4, REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

4. WaEKkDEHRS (@)

(b) SERS (&)

AE2fpEKD w2 -BE -8

profit, assets, liabilities and other items: BREMBEZHIK !
2025 2024
ZEZhHE ZETNE
HK$’000 HKS'000
FAET FET
Revenue Y &5
Total reportable segment revenue Al 2RO AEEE 470,308 864,305
Elimination of inter-segment Hig o BEE NG
revenue - -
Consolidated revenue EEWa 470,308 864,305
(Loss)/Profit (B548) 7
Total reportable segment (loss)/ REXEBIAERZ
profit derived from the Group’s o 2RH4E (58
external customers wa M AR KB (4,571) 11,453
Other net income HAMU A F B 995 3,169
Depreciation for property, plantand ~ FAstE 248 (5518) & H
equipment of reportable segment RERETAZAIZ2HRNE
not included in measurement of ME -BEKREBITE
segment (loss)/profit (4) (5)
Depreciation for right-of-use RErE D (BEB) &F)
assets of reportable segment RERFTAZRAIZ2RDFEZ
not included in measurement of FRAREERE
segment (loss)/profit (66) (67)
Loss allowance recognised on trade ~ [EUREE 5 B HESR
receivables BB (5,186) (32,615)
(Loss allowance recognised)/reversal 3% K ELfth & W 71 18
of loss allowance on deposits and (BmRBEERE)
other receivables BEEEER (324) 752
Loss allowance recognised on FEURIE SR TIB
amount due from a non- BREREIEEE
controlling interest (432) (411)
(Write-down)/reversal of write-down 725 (8D / #iUR #[D
on inventories (4,830) 2,413
Impairment loss on property, plant ME BB KRB RERIE
and equipment (10,661) -
Impairment loss on right-of-use FRAREEZRERE
assets (3,620) =
Loss on lease modification HEEREE - (736)
Finance costs G327 (575) (639)
Unallocated head office and ROFCAEMEREREERS
corporate expenses
- Staff costs (including directors’ —BIWA (BEES
emoluments) H) (7,381) (6,448)
- Others —H A (9,490) (7,100)
Consolidated loss before taxation IR EBRIRAIE 1R (46,145) (30,234)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

WKk RS (&)

(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) FEERS (@
2025 2024
—ECRHE “ETmE
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
Assets BE
Total reportable segment assets AIE2RDEEERE 503,733 552,410
Elimination of inter-segment 8 FE R R UG IE
receivable - -
503,733 552,410
Unallocated head office and ROFCEMEEREEEE
corporate assets
- Cash and cash equivalents —REMRREEED 3,134 6,503
- Others —HAh 1,483 1,442
Consolidated total assets REBEEMRE 508,350 560,355
Liabilities &afE
Total reportable segment liabilities 7] 2Rk $8 & (548 4E 129,184 130,603
Elimination of inter-segment HiE D R R R IE
payable = =
129,184 130,603
Unallocated head office and RKOEBEMEERTEESR
corporate liabilities
- Others —H A 3,512 3,372
Consolidated total liabilities REBERE 132,696 133,975
Other items HIEE
Depreciation for property, ME - -BEKREREITE
plant and equipment
Reportable segment total Al 2RO FRLREE 2,823 2,222
Unallocated head office and ROECAR #}]#%JEEZ
corporate total b 4EER - -
Consolidated total IR e HaEE 2,823 2,222
Depreciation for right-of-use assets ~ fE BB EITE
Reportable segment total A 2RO FRLREE 7,421 7,111
Unallocated head office and ROEREMERR
corporate total b4EER - -
Consolidated total IREH4EER 7,421 7,111
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4, WmkoiERE (&)

(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) SEHRE (@)
2025 2024
—E-RE “Z2TMEF
HKSs’000 HKS'000
FAET FET
Other items (continued) HhigE (&)
Income tax (credit)/expense FRSH GE®R) /B
Reportable segment total A 2RO FELREE (47) 947
Unallocated head office and RO SR
corporate total 24EzEE - -
Consolidated total REHREE (47) 947
Additions to non-current segment FRABFRBDEEE
assets during the year
Reportable segment total 2RO IELREE 14,094 6,410
Unallocated head office and KOBCARMER K
corporate total h4EER - =
Consolidated total Ime 4L 14,094 6,410
Revenue from major products and services TEERRIREZ W
The following is an analysis of the Group’s UTAKXRERRBETEERZWm
revenue from its major products: Ak
2025 2024
—ERE —EE
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Metal minerals and related industrial < & 84 & tHRA T 2 Rkl
materials 366,084 731,918
Industrial products THRER 104,224 132,387
470,308 864,305
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)
Geographic information

The following is an analysis of geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers; and (ii) the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, goodwill, trade receivables and other
intangible asset. The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which
the products were delivered. The geographical
locations of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets is based on the physical
location of the assets under consideration.
In the case of goodwill, trade receivables
and other intangible asset, it is based on the
location of the operation to which they are
allocated.

4.

WKk RS (&)

(b)

SEME ()
HWEHK

TREIWAEERBEIFRERZ
Wk ; (A EBYE - BB KRR
B -EREEE - BE - BKES
MR EMET B ELMIENES
DZAM-BERZMBAETHIR
NERZUB D -ME--KBEK
REREABEEZMBAETR
BFFEBREEZERMUES D om
HE RKEZRERAMETLE
EMs RBERSEEDEZEE
EHREMNES Do

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

RBIIAER 2 W ERBEE
2025 2024 2025 2024
ZECRE T NE ZEZRE —ENE
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET FET FAET

Hong Kong (place of &8 (GEffiith2h)

domicile) - - - -
Other Asian countries EL {3 HEIZ 31,834 = = =
PRC except Hong Kong FHE (& &N 438,474 864,305 49,902 64,451
470,308 864,305 49,902 64,451
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing 10%
or more of the total sales of the Group are as

WKk RS (&)

(b) DERS (&)

BT EZERZEH

(HAREBAEFHEREINH U 2 &F
P& :

follows:

2025 2024
—EBRE —EE
HKs’000 HKS'000
F#ET FAET

Customer A (note (i) BRA (Hf526) 102,906 132,231

Customer B (note (ii)) = BB (W% i) 93,177 =

Customer C (note (ii) BEC (BaEaGE) 86,303 =

Customer D (note (iii)) = FD (Kyiii) 79,619 731,918

Notes: Wizt

i) Revenue from the above a group of i) HE_FE_FFR _F_[JIF
customers arose from the businesses of =HA=+—HIEFE FHEF
production and sale of industrial products PR Z W a5 K E L ERE
for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024. ETH*HEmR-

i) Revenue from the above customers arose ii) BE—_E_AFE=F=+—H
from the business of sourcing and sale lﬁfﬁﬁ? i/’l’gﬁzl/ﬁ? i /5 2K
of metal minerals and related industrial HIRER 1 & T BB R IE6H
materials for the year ended 31 March 2025. TEERER-

i) Revenue from the above customer arose iii) HE_F_HFER _ZE_JIEF

from the business of sourcing and sale metal
minerals and related industrial materials for
the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

ZHA=+—HIFE LZF
B2 a5 K EIRE R & 2
BIEY R T R EF

OTHER NET INCOME 5. HthkAREE
2025 2024
“E"HE “EuE
HKS’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZH BWA 46 25
Interest income on amount due from a F’gﬂiﬂﬂ’tﬁﬂgm-r)\lgz
non-controlling interest FMEWA 432 411
Total interest income on financial RBIERN AT EC SREE
assets measured at amortised cost Z M B WA AREE 478 436
Sundry income FETEUWTA 165 27
Net foreign exchange gain PE 2 U s /2 58 352 2,706
995 3,169
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R ER AR MY 5E

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6. PRIRAIESHE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRIATESIEE N (E%R) TFISIE !
(crediting):
2025 2024
ZZEZTHE —T@EF
HKs’000 HKS000
F#ET FAET
(a) Finance costs B E B s
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEHE 575 639
Total interest expense on financial W IR A REETA
liabilities not at fair value through BazesMas
profit or loss ZH BRI 4B 575 639
(b) Employee benefits expenses EEEFMMRAZ
(including directors’ emoluments) (BIEEEF)
Salaries, wages and other benefits FE-TEM
HEH 21,064 20,666
Contributions to defined TERE R TR RS
contribution retirement plans 2R 2,304 296
23,368 20,962
() Other items HthIigg
Cost of inventories (note (i) BFEERAE (HaEa0) 473,999 851,650
Auditor’s remuneration 1% &4 B it B 752 730
Depreciation for property, plant and ME-BE K
equipment REBITE 2,823 2,222
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FREEENE 7,421 7,111
Loss on lease modification MHEENEIE - 736
Loss allowance recognised on trade FEWE 5 TR I8 EFERR
receivables (note (ii)) EIERE (W52 ai)) 5,186 32,615
Loss allowance recognised/(reversal & & HAMEWERIE
of loss allowance) on deposits and EREREEEE
other receivables (B51E & E R (O) 324 (752)
Loss allowance recognised on FE W IR I #E TR 1B
amount due from a non- B EIaEE
controlling interests 432 411
Write-down/(reversal of EE MR, R o
write-down) on inventories 4,830 (2,413)
Written off of property, plant and MEBE M
equipment % 17 35 33
Impairment loss on property, plant ME-BEREZEZ
and equipment AEEE 10,661 =
Impairment loss on right-of-use PREEEZRERISE
assets 3,620 -
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6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6. PRMAIEIE (&)
Notes: HiaE -
(i) Cost of inventories which included in “Cost of sales” (i) FERARGEERREME2ERERE

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and being the carrying
amount of inventories sold, included approximately
HK$25,619,000 (2024: approximately HK$22,391,000)
relating to employee benefits expenses and
depreciation for property, plant and equipment and
for right-of-use assets for the years ended 31 March
2025 and 2024 which amounts were also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed separately
in notes 6(b) and 6(c) for each of these types of
expenses.

(ii) Loss allowance recognised on trade receivables (ii)
included specific expected credit loss on trade
receivables approximately HK$6,906,000 (2024:
approximately HK$32,637,000) and reversal of
loss allowance on trade receivables approximately
HK$1,720,000 (2024: approximately HK$22,000).

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. #r
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a)
profit or loss represents:

ATSHERZE BIBEEEFEEZREE
BESE_S_AER_TNE=H
—t+—HIEFEEZEREERMHESZRE
%%\Jﬁz%&%ﬁ{mﬁ%u&@ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ
HrEE4925,619,00078 7T (Z T U4 :
22,391,000 7T) 7EE§TAIE7TE/?}L§§Z
H BRI 5T A D BB 56 (b) K2 6(c)FT ik
B RIEMEEET -

EREZREREREQEERES
FIEETE FEHA1E B85 18496,906,00078 7T

(ZE N4 : 4932,637,00058 70) K&
W B 5 TIE 518 B 5 1581 491,720,00078
Tt (2T ZH4E © £922,00087T) ©

BHEERZAER

RAEERZEMRES

2025 2024
-l —ETE
HK$’000 HKS'000
FETT FET
Current tax KHEAFRIB
- Hong Kong Profits Tax (note (i) ~ —&BHRER (Ha2i)) = =
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") — Bt ZET1EH
(note (i) (TR
(K a#Gi)) - 1,127
- 1,127
Over-provision of prior year BEFEEBEEE
- PRCEIT —HE SR (47) (180)
Total “ast (47) 947
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents: (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided
as the Group has no assessable profits or
sufficient tax losses to set-off the assessable
profits for the year ended 31 March 2025
(2024: nil).

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the EIT tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

According to a joint circular of the Ministry
of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation, Cai Shui 2008 No. 1, only the profits
earned by foreign-investment enterprise
prior to 1 January 2008, when distributed to
foreign investors, can be grandfathered and
exempted from withholding tax. Dividend
distributed out of the profits generated
thereafter shall be subject to the EIT at 5% or
10% and withheld by PRC entities.

The Group is not subject to any taxation
under the jurisdiction of Bermuda, Samoa,
Jersey and the British Virgin Islands for the
years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

(a)

op
STt
Bk

RZFR1F1R (&)

RAERERZERE | (@

HaE -

(0]

(iii)
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HRAEEBRE_T _HF=
B=1T—HILEFELERERR
B 5 SR IE S IR S R ER
EH  BIAESHE B BFER
(CEZEF B\ -

REBEFEEEMRSRZE (TE
EFRTBRIE) REEMRSER
EBRE REKME AR
WMEFEEEMERREGR
25%-°

1R 35 B B30 R [ 3R AR 75 48 = e
&2 BEMEFR2008515%
SNELEERBIIRREED
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BE BN o ) BF 2R G2 A AR TR 30
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. BRABHmRZFER (8
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expense (b) RIE (IB%R) BB E TR IERE
and accounting loss at the applicable tax MEAERIBENEHR :
rates:
2025 2024
—E_RE = r1s 5
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Loss before taxation PRI ARS8 (46,145) (30,234)
Notional tax on loss before FRINAIEEZ &R
taxation, calculated at the BB AT
domestic income tax rate of RE16.5%:tE
16.5% (2024: 16.5%) (ZZZM4E 6. 5%) (7,614) (4,989)
Tax effect of non-deductible AR ERZREFE
expenses 2,884 8,997
Tax effect of non-taxable income ~ REtRIRNAZRFFF & (85) (1,458)
Effect of different tax rates arising ~EMMRIBE A EFTES
from other tax jurisdictions MEEREIZE (3,043) (2,346)
Tax losses not recognised KRR 2 MIEEE 1,733 1,277
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss £ R ERIRIBEE >
not recognised MBEE - (325)
Tax effect of temporary difference  KREDEREE
not recognise MBEE 6,125 =
Over-provision in prior year BEEEREEE (47) (180)
Others H1th - (29)
Income tax (credit)/expense FRS#IE (E%) /B (47) 947
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEM=
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section BERBEEBATMEAIEIBMERAE (K
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and BESFEER) ROISE2EFURENE
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information EMEWF
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2025
ZZIRE
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
EE HeEMR BIREE
ik L HIRTEAL % &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Ho Yu-shun (Chief Executive) ASBELE (TEAEH) - 2,000 - 18 2,018
Ms. Sun Le ot Son - 1,800 150 18 1,968
Non-executive director FRTES
Ms. Sun Di BRBLt 50 - - - 50
Independent non-executive directors BIERITES
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REMELE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Tang Kin Nam WEmEE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho BXESLE 150 - - - 150
590 3,800 150 36 4,576
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued) 8. ZEEME (&)
2024
ZEINE
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors' benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
BE e Rk RRErE
wE BYHlE [ESlEg(Fal =3 Mt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Ho Yu-shun (Chief Executive) MEBLE (THER) = 2,000 = 18 2,018
Ms. Sun Le Y S - 1,800 150 18 1,968
Non-executive director FRTES
Ms. Sun Di mggt 50 - - - 50
Independent non-executive directors BUIERITES
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REMELE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Tang Kin Nam MEmEE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho BXELE 150 - - - 150
590 3,800 150 36 4,576

No director of the Company has waived any
emoluments and no emoluments were paid or payable
by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group for the years ended
31 March 2025 and 2024.

BE_T_AER_E_NE=B=+—
HIEFEE > KA B2 EE B ERET AN
o MAEETEATANESZLREN
FERME EFARSEMALRERFNMAL
EEFFZIEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

10.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9. EmE#MAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, AEBRARSHFMATH ML (T2
two (2024: two) are directors of the Company whose “HE R RAREES HlEER
emoluments are disclosed in notes 8. The aggregate M ZE Hifg=% CETWE . =4)
emoluments in respect of the other three (2024: three) e AT ZBISEZEWT -
individuals are as follows:
2025 2024
—ERE 2T
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Salaries and other emoluments e M EHAME = 1,735 1,735
Discretionary bonuses IBTEAL 195 175
Retirement scheme contributions BRRETEHRR 54 54
1,984 1,964
The emoluments of the three (2024: three) individuals =% (CEIOFE =) ReRMA LT G
(who are not directors of the Company) with the FEXRRNBEE) 2WEBR TFIHER
highest emoluments are within the following bands:
2025 2024
“TRE —ENE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A2 A&
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 77T £ 1,000,00078 71 3 3
No emoluments were paid by the Group to these PREEE AEBRTEAZZEALTZS
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining e FAREMAREBELMAL
the Group or as compensation for loss of office for EERF 2 BN BB A E -
both years.
DIVIDENDS 10. KRS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended
31 March 2025, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period (2024: nil).

BHE_E_AF-RB=+—HLEFER"
WA N LB EEIREE o R
RE > BIREHARERERZRETMAK
B (CEME &) o
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11. LOSS PER SHARE 11.

a)

b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

Basic loss per share a)

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing
the loss for the year attributable to owners of

BiREHE

BREAREBE
RERBIEDRBEARBTEAA
BEENBEGRUERNEETER

the Company by the weighted average number Re e TR E o
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2025 2024
—E"hRE —ZETOF
Loss E5i8
Loss for the year KRBEB A
attributable to owners of &1L F A5 18
the Company (HKS'000) (F#&7T) (45,881) (30,782)
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of BEITEER
ordinary shares in issue N8 21,084,072,140 21,084,072,140
Basic loss per share SREAXEIE
(HK cent per share) (52 EN) (0.218) (0.146)
Diluted loss per share b) SREEESE

Diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 March 2025 and 2024 is the same as the
basic loss per share as there is no potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the years.

BRERITEBEZTERSRT
W E_E_EER TN
EZA=+—HILEEXEREE
FERESKREREEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
7 o = |

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

12.

AR R M5

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income.
The contributions from each of the employer and
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per
month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
state-managed retirement benefit scheme. The
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

12.

B S RAEF

TEERSBRBEEBEREONEEMER
EERBEBRFMERBZSEEA > 2
HHEBESSERFIMEAEEE (T34
BREstEl) -RBTFEIR—ERBIRE
E A BRI E B MR IR E - RIFRE
=5t 2 BEREEMYERESHEE <
5%Z BB FHER - EEIREESH
ZHAREE EIRAE F1,50058 7w Hi2P] B
FEMRR > 518 Z (HRENBFER & o

AEET2E-—BERERMZERXEER
HREMNE - AEBZFRENBRAEEE
97 B B U 8 2 B R E IR IR KR A
SEIZHNE - ZEMBAB AR IEMAE
ZIEEB D LERBRIRER B MR R
BRABRARENE - AEERBRIKEF 5
ZH—BERFREEMRMR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME -BER=ME
(a) Property, plant and equipment (a) ME- -BERRRE
Plant, Furniture Construction
machinery and and Office Computer Motor Leasehold in
equipment fixtures ~ equipment  equipment vehicles  improvements progress Total
BE RHER RIS

RE  GHRKE MAERE  RERR i K ERIE &
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
77 7 ] 77 77 ] ] 77

Cost T

At 1 April 2023 RIEZZEMA-H 68,684 444 2075 930 9 2839 2738 78621
Additions HE 1,953 - 30 - - - - 1,983
Transfer from CIP ERIREL 2613 - - - - - 2613) -
Written off ] (33) - - - - - - (33)
Effect of foreign currency  SNEERZR 2 ¥ &

exchange differences (3,647) (15) (106) (0] (45) (149) (125) (4,091)
At3I March204and ~ RZZZMEZF=1-H

1 April 2024 R-E_REMA-A 69,570 429 1999 926 866 2,690 - 76,480
Additions HE 14,094 - - - - - - 14,094
Written off 6] (358) - - - - - - (358)
Effect of foreign currency  SNEERZE 2 ¥/ &

exchange differences (874) (3) (22) (1) (9) (29) - (938)
At31 March 2025 RZ2Z%=A=1-H 82,432 426 1977 925 857 2,661 - 89,278

Accumulated depreciation E 3t % RiifE
and impairment

At 1 April 2023 RIEZZEMF-H 45191 444 1,588 98 911 107 - 49169
Charge for the year EENR 1,905 - 317 - - - - 2222
Effect of foreign currency  SNEERZEZHE

exchange differences (2393) (15) (82) (0] (45) (6) - (2,545)

M3IMarch2024and  RZZ-ME=F=1-R

1 April 2024 RZE-REMA-A 44,703 429 1823 924 866 101 - 48,846
Charge for the year EEME 2,682 - 141 - - - - 2823
Impairment loss HEEE 9,537 - - - - 1,124 - 10,661
Written off i (323) - - - - - - (323)
Effectof foreign cureny  SMEEREZE2EE

exchange differences (590) 3) (21) (1) (9) M) - (635)
At31 March 2025 RZ2ZR%=A=1-A 56,009 426 1,943 923 857 1,214 - 61372

Carrying amounts REfE

At31 March 2025 RIBZ%=A=1-H 26,423 - 34 2 - 1447 - 27,906

At 31 March 2024 RZE_ME=A=1-H 24,867 = 176 2 = 2,589 = 27,634
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.
(continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets
The analysis of the net book value of right-
of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as

Y& BB Rt (B)

(b) EREEE
RIEMEERB D ZEREEE
SREFEZDHAT :

follows:
2025 2024
ZERE “ETNE
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Ownership interests in leasehold ~ FEERMAE Tt SIEFH
land and buildings held for D (R AR
own use, carried at cost less TESER) » FIERFAHEAA !
depreciation with remaining lease
term of:
- Between 17 and 35 years (2024: — 178 E35%
between 18 and 36 years) (ZE-HE [ 18F
ZF365F) 2,777 2,874
Other leasehold land and buildings HfthH RHEE it KigF
leased for own use, carried at cost  (ZRUAIRITE &
less depreciation and impairment 5 &%/ 8R) 1,879 9,919
4,656 12,793
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATE

D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

(continued)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

ME BB Rz (&)

(b) EREEE (&)

The analysis of expense items in relation to RiEm DR A EEENREIE
leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows: BzamaT :
2025 2024
—E-EE —B-mE
HKs$’000 HKS$'000
FAET FAET
Depreciation charge for BHEBAEEENE D2
right-of-use assets by class of FREEEZINESWY
underlying asset:
- Ownership interests in leasehold - F{EFEAHEE LK%
land and buildings held for BFNEEE#ET
own use 66 67
- Other leasehold land and -HBAHE T Kig
buildings leased for own use ¥ 7,355 7,044
7,421 7,111
Impairment loss on other leasehold Elfth B FAFH & £ 3t Kz
land and buildings leased for own  &F Z B {EEE
use 3,620 =
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGNE
(note 6(a)) (Ht526(a)) 575 639
Expense relating to short-term lease ER4ZHATE E A RIME X 582 582
During the year, additions of approximately FRCRABEEELMAEN

HK$2,970,000 (2024: approximately
HK$4,427,000) as a result of lease modification.

No cash outflow for leases during the years
ended 31 March 2025 and 2024. The lease
payment for the year ended 31 March 2025
with amounted approximately HK$7,714,000
was set off with trade receivables (2024:
approximately HK$8,488,000).

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is set
out in note 22.

2,970,000 (ZE - HE | &

4,427,0005 7T) ©

BE_ZE AR _NE=
B=+—HLEEE #HEWHEIRE
FH-BE_E_RHE=B=+—
HIEFEMEENMA 7,714,000
B HEKEZRIERE (T2
—DY4F : £98,488,00078 7T) °

HE &G EIHE 7247 &5 MY 5E
220
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R ER AR MY 5E

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

13.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

(i) Ownership interests in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use

The Group holds the interests in
leasehold land and buildings for
its ordinary course of business. The
Group is the registered owner of
these property interests, including
the whole or part of undivided share
in the underlying land. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to
acquire these property interests from
the government authorities, and there
are no ongoing payments to be made
under the terms of the land lease,
other than payments based on rateable
values set by the relevant government
authorities. These payments vary from
time to time and are payable to the
relevant government authorities.

(i) Other leasehold land and buildings
leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to
use the land and building through
tenancy agreements. The lease typically
runs for an period of 5 years.

Impairment assessment

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of CGU
engaged in the business of production and sale
of industrial products:

The production and sale of industrial products
cash-generating unit operated at a loss.

As a result, the management performed an
impairment test on the relevant property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.
The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation
by using cash flow forecast projections
based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period.

13.

ME--BmE Rz (&)

(b)

(c)

FREEE (&)

(i) FFEEHHE L M RIEF
ZHEE R
AEERHBEXEHEBRESR
FERFFERBEE LK
BFZEm - AEEBZSE
MER@RZEMERS A
145 18 B £ 3 59 & 6 5 P
MDA DEPE - AEEE
FESEH — R M7 AR
BRERBAZEY =
m MERREBEEHBNER
MENERREZMENLR
Sh s BIER IR + M BRI K
MBI ZE N A EE
B TENTERBNE
Bo

(i  AtEFABEELHMRIET

FEEEZBHEEMZEN
Bt RIBFHERE-TH
ERHIR—fRA5F -

BT
NELEERHETEEREHNIR
TEEEMUNYE  BERRHFEN
RERAEEERNRETS :

TERBETXERRSEEE
BEEHFBE-

Hit > EEEXNAMYE - BRE K
REUREREEEETHER
o REELEMUMN I WEIEEAT,
BERAEBESE BBERERE
BEE#ERFRMBRENTARER
TREVRAEE -



13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE

(continued)

(c)

Impairment assessment (continued)

The following table set out the key

iR E MBS R R MY sE

YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 #ZE_ZT _HFF=-A=+—HLEE

Y BB Rt (48)

(0 EEFTE (&
TR ABERAEERFFAANE

assumptions used in the value in use =
calculation:
2025
b - 2
Revenue growth rate W 18 R = 3% to 23%
Budgeted gross margin FAEEFE 12%
Long-term growth rate REFIER= 3%
Pre-tax discount rate PRIGATAG IR 1%

Management has determined the values
assigned to each of the above key assumptions

as follows:

Assumption
BR%

EEEERMESRIERRNE
BEEEMNT :

Approach used to determine values

EEEENSE

Revenue growth rate

M R

Budgeted gross margin

AEEN X

Long-term growth rate

EREEE

Pre-tax discount rate

PRI AT ARIRE

- Based on past performance and management’s expectation of
future income.

—ERNBERREREEREHRRWABNTEL -

- Based on past performance and management’s expectation of
future gross margin.

—ERNBERRREEBHEARIRENKTER-

- Based on the historical data and management expectation of
the future market.

—ERELBIBEKREERBHRRTIHHITE

- The discount rate used is before tax and reflect specific risk
relating to the relevant business unit.

— P A RRE IR R A PRI ARG IR SR » 6 i MR B AR RASE 75 B8 (U
BRIV E Bk o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME-
(continued)
(c) Impairment assessment (continued) (c)

Based on the value in use calculation, the
recoverable amount is lower than the carrying
amount of the CGU, and thus impairment
losses were made on the related assets of the
CGU as follows:

B Rt (48)

A E T ()

REREESE JWE S8R
RRTELEEUNREE FIEE
HERRTELBUNEREENR
LUNRERE :

HK$'000
FET

Impairment loss on property, ME-BERRERERE
plant and equipment 10,661
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEERERIE 3,620
14,281

The recoverable amount of the relevant CGU
for the relevant assets was approximately
HK$95,139,000 at 31 March 2025.

At 31 March 2025, the directors considered
that a reasonably possible change in key
assumptions mentioned above would not
cause further impairment losses on the related
assets of the CGU.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

R-_E_RE=B=+—H 1
EENERIRSEEEMNTUE
S EE497495,139,00078 7T ©

RIEBE-RF=R=+—H &%
B LT BRROGER]EE
BRI TERHEELEBUNARE
EEHIFE S RERBE-



14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

GOODWILL [k
2025 2024
bk - 2 e
HKs$’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Cost %
At beginning and at end of the year REPDRER 5,368 5,368
Accumulated impairment loss REtRERIE
At beginning and at end of the year RE RER (5,368) (5,368)
Carrying amount REE = =
Others segment: Hithor4a :

For purposes of impairment testing, goodwill had
been allocated to a CGU which is principally engaged
in logistics businesses comprising warehousing,
transportation and cargo handling in Hong Kong
and PRC, and included under others segment. The
management considered Shing Kee International
Logistics Holdings Limited (“SKIL”) together with
its subsidiary, Shing Kee Sea-land Logistics &
Warehousing (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (literally translation
of 5zt BREYRAE ORI BRAE) (“Sealand”)
(collectively the “SKIL Group”) is the CGU for
allocation of goodwill as synergies are derived in such
arrangement.

MBEAEME  BEDRORIREE
TBEUHFEREBRTRAREYRE
HoOEAE BRI KREHEEE Wt AH
tAFEIET - EEBER %R B EARYR
ERBRAE (TR K EMH B
AEBEEEYRE (R BRAE (T
sgkE)) (M BERRER) B
EMEZREEEEM THYHRABRZH
FIEE R Rk o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSET 15. HithWEREE
Customer
relationship
EERE
HK$000
FAET
Cost DN
At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024, RIEZ=FB—H -ZFT@WF
1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 == +—BE-ZFEWEMNE—B &
—ETAF=H=+—H 4,202
Accumulated amortisation and EtEHRRE
impairment
At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024, A ZE_=FNBE—H-ZTMWF
1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 EF=E—E =8 @E@ﬁ Hx
“ERFE=ZRZ= -1— H 4,202
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 March 2025 A _E_RFFE=HA=+—H -
At 31 March 2024 A _E_WE=B=+—H -
16. INVENTORIES 16. F&
2025 2024
—E-RHE —EuE
HKS$’000 HKS$000
FET FHET
Raw materials Rt 8,991 1,242
Finished goods BUAL 32,867 24,737
41,858 25,979

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised

RBRFAS WA st ABmZFEE

as an expense/(income) and included in profit or loss is @EZ AT -
as follows:
2025 2024
“E"HE “ENE
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Carrying amount of inventories sold E',Eﬁ s 7 IREE 473,399 851,650
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) iR, Gl [a0)
on inventories 4,830 (2,413)
478,229 849,237
The reversal of write-down on inventories arose due to FEMBER AR ERHE REEIEN

the slow-moving inventories were sold during the year. F&-o

All the inventories are expected to be sold within one

year.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES 17. BREZHIE

2025 2024

t Sl -2 —E[UE

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Trade receivables FE B 5 1T 172,877 207,278
Less: Loss allowance recognised B BREREEEE (40,039) (35,280)
132,838 171,998

2025 2024

—E-RE T

HKS$’000 HK$'000

FAET FHET

Represented by: (3

Non-current portion (note (ii) JEREIEB 3 (ML (ii)) 17,340 24,024
Current portion TRENER D 115,498 147,974
132,838 171,998

Notes:

(i)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice
date or shipment and delivery date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

Mt -

SRE DA

AT mEBEREHARZERAARNES
RIS BPARTZENE S HIE 0k
BIREHE) ZIRE DT

2025 2024
—E-RE —ZTE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FEr

0-60 days 0E60H 100,843 16,023
61-120 days 61Z120H 6,192 8,802
121-180 days 121Z180H 8,453 90,146
181-360 days 181E360H 10 51,262
Over 360 days iBiB360H 17,340 5,765
132,838 171,998

Trade receivables are usually due within 360 days
(2024: 360 days) from invoice date or shipment and
delivery date. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy and credit risk arising from trade receivables
are set out in note 26(a).

The settlement of this debtor of the Group being
subject to a voluntary debt restructuring repayment
plan approved by the court of PRC.

(i)

EWEBZREEENEEHSHREER
AT HHEAREST360H (Z T L4 : 360
B REIfB-AEBEEBRK KB RIK
BORBEEENEERKRZE—DTEE
R HIEE26(a) ©

KREBZLEBNRETEPEIERR
ER B RRES ERENEEFENR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. FANHIE-IRS KR HMEWIIE

RECEIVABLES
2025 2024
—ERE 2T
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Amount due from a non-controlling FEU IR IR RE T TR 1B
interest (note (a)) (Hizt(a)) 8,858 8,426
Other receivables HhpEWRIE 428 874
Trade deposits paid (note (d)) BB Z s (Hatd) 296,937 309,508
Other deposits and prepayments Hitxe RFEMRIE 1,615 5,774
Other tax prepayments (note (c)) HFELRIE (HaE () 174 176
Less: Loss allowance recognised o BRI REE
(notes (a) and (b)) Kyt @) %% (b)) (10,093) (9,349)
297,919 315,409
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEBRENDNA
Current assets MENEE 297,919 315,409
Non-current assets EREEE - =
297,919 315,409
Notes: et -
(a) The amount is secured by the shares in certain private (a) MIEDULEREBFMRILZAAT

limited companies incorporated in Hong Kong, one
of which being SKIL, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group. It was interest-bearing at 5.01% per
annum and was due on 30 September 2017.

As at 31 March 2025, the balance is past due and
impairment allowance recognised of approximately
HK$8,858,000 (2024: approximately HK$8,426,000) is
provided.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

RABZRMEHRIER Hh—Bax
ERFEENBRARBLBEY R A
RAFIER F ) K5.01%1 2 RARZ
E—tFNA=+HEMR

RIB_RAE=ZB=+—H #&E
180 15 3 e 50 50 (8 5 1 498,858,000 T
(ZE O © 498,426,000 7T) ©



18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(@]

Impairment of other receivables

Impairment losses recognised in respect of other
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss
recognised is written off against other receivables
directly (see note 2(h)).

TR TRIE ~ & & B H th FE W R IR

(4&)
wiz : ()
)  EERRAZEE

BREMEWNTIEZ ERERERED
ERBARLIR RIFAEREAIKD
BRRIEZ o] e IR R B R B 5% » FEUIE
BERT BERBEBIEEEEMEE
fthIEURRIR (RFFE2(h)) o

Movements in the loss allowance recognised ERREEEEES
2025 2024
ZERE —T g
Note HKS’000 HKS'000
Byt FAET FAET
At beginning of the year REA) 9,349 9,758
Impairment loss/(reversal of ~ RIBIIFEEE,
impairment loss) to (R{ERBEEE)
profit or loss 756 (341)
Exchange differences ERER (12) (68)
At end of the year REXR 10,093 9,349
Note: Wizt
(i) At 31 March 2025, loss allowance in respect (i) W_E_HRFE=B=+—8H"

of other receivables of the Group including
amount due from a non-controlling
interest, other receivables and deposits and
prepayments amounting to approximately
HK$10,093,000 (2024: approximately
HK$$9,349,000) were recognised by the
Group. The major impaired receivables were
outstanding for over 1 year at the end of the
reporting period and were due from a non-
controlling interest with financial difficulties.

The other tax prepayments represent the prepaid
value-added tax in PRC which can be utilised to offset
the value-added tax payable arising from the future
sales of the subsidiaries operating in PRC.

At 31 March 2025, trade deposits of approximately
HK$296,937,000 (2024: approximately
HK$309,508,000) were paid by the Group to the
suppliers for secure the procurement volume and
purchase of merchandise and raw materials which
can be recognised as purchases after the year end
date upon the delivery of the merchandise and raw
materials to the Group.

At 31 March 2025, an impairment loss on trade
deposits approximately HK$669,000 (2024:
approximately HK$351,000) has been recognised.

AEBEEIDEMAERHE M
FEUR TR I8 > B35 FE WK FE 2 AR A
R0 18~ AR U R IE M K 32
EREAREZ BEBENS
10,093,00078 7T (Z T U4 :
#99,349,000787T) c TEREZ
EUFRIER N R EHRRB B
—ENEEHEBRE
JE P2 B e 2 B FE UK R IE ©

HiBARBEETEEAEMEER A
FBEIRSSTE PR EE 2 MY B AR IR IR
EITHEFMEL 2 B IRER -

R-E_RAF=A=+—H ' &x£H
EATHIERE 8 5 % $49296,937,000%8 70
(ZZ P94 : £9309,508,00058 75) LA
BEREEREEEYREME > B
SRR AEBRNEY R R RE
FHEHBRIEAREE.

A E_RE=ZHA=+—8'BRERE
S 2 R{ER51E49669,0008 7T (Z
P94 : #9351,00058 7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

19.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 19. RERREEEMREMBRAER
OTHER CASH FLOWS INFORMATION =§—¢ o
(a) Cash and cash equivalents (a) RERFREEEY
2025 2024
—ERE - Jal 0= =
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERE 3,134 6,503
Cash and cash equivalentsinthe &R TERE
consolidated statement of financial 4 AaREHRERZ
position and the consolidated HERREEEY
statement of cash flows 3,134 6,503

Note:

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates.

At 31 March 2025, cash and cash equivalents
situated in Mainland China amount to
approximately HK$8,000 (2024: approximately
HK$19,000). Remittance of funds out of
Mainland China is subject to relevant rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control.

Mt -

IRITRESRBHRTERANERZZHT]
FEREVH B o

R-E-_RE=RA=+—80 UK
FEAMNRERRSSEYNS
8,00078 7T (Z & 4 : £919,00078
70) ° & % & H B A B8 5T 48
RAYMNE S HI VAR B B AR Bl o
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19.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

OTHER CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
(continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

19. RERBEFEYMRAMBER

EEH (B

(b) FBEBFRELEREZHIER

Lease

liabilities

Hea®E

HKS'000

FAET

(note 22)

(#i5t22)

At 1 April 2023 RIZZEZ=FMWE—H 6,489

Non-cash transaction (note) JERERZ (HIsH) (8,488)

Lease modification HEEN 5,163

Exchange differences ERE2R 375

Interest expenses (note 6(a)) FEMZ (MsF6()) 639
At 31 March 2024 and at 1 April 2024 RZE_OMFE=B=+—H8BxX

RIE_MFMHAE—H 4,178

Non-cash transaction (note) JFRERZ (IsH) (7,714)

Lease modification HEEN 2,970

Exchange differences ERE2R (9)

Interest expenses (note 6(a)) FEMZ (HsF6()) 575

At 31 March 2025

Note:

The lease payment for 2025 with amounted
approximately HK$7,714,000 (2024: approximately

HK$8,488,000) was set off with trade receivables.

R-E_RF=H=+—H

Mt -

CE T AFAENREELN%7,714,00078
7t (ZZ TS © 498,488,000787T) ° B

FEU B 5 TR IR 8 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

20. TRADE PAYABLES 20. BB ZMIA
2025 2024
—ERE “ETNE
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Trade payables FET B S8 88,479 74,145
Note: iz -
Ageing analysis BREC DT

As the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade payables based on the invoice date or shipment and

delivery date is as follows:

UTFAREERRRERANHBELERZTH
M2 ZENEZRBZIRE DN

2025 2024

ZEHE —BpNg

HKS’000 HKS'000

FAET FAET

0-60 days 0E60H 2,326 6,648
61-120 days 612120H 78,738 61,271
121-180 days 121E180H 6 207
181-360 days 1812360H 1,387 871
Over 360 days BiE360H 6,022 5,148
88,479 74,145

Trade payables are expected to be settled within one year.

BN EZRAERRARIN —FANZ (-
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21.

22,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EstERREMESTIE
2025 2024
—E_RE —ZETO4F
HKS’000 HKS$'000
FHT FHT
Accruals and other payables FESTE B K EMhEI RIE 41,800 52,025
Note: =2

All the accruals and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

LEASE LIABILITIES 22.

At 31 March 2025 and 2024, the lease liabilities are
repayable as follows:

st BAKREMENRELBERARN —FR
IV HBERERE -

HE&RE

RNIE_REKR_E_NWE=ZB=+—
B HEaBEESRWT

2025 2024

“TRE —Z M

HK$’000 HKS'000

FHET FET

Within 1 year —FER - 1,626
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBREMEAN - 2,552
- 4,178

The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease
liabilities is 4.75% (2024: 4.75%).

BRANEEEBENEENEXA475% (T2
ZPO4E : 4.75%) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

23. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23. ZEMBRARZEAIER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) EEMBRRARZ AR

statement of financial position represents:

2025 2024
ZEZhRE “ETmE
HKs$’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
At beginning of the year REHD 3,561 3,296
Provision for the year KEEEHE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax (note 7(a)) —&AHFH
(H1&t7(a)) - i
- PRCEIT (notes 7(a)) — B EFTIER
(Hizt7(a)) - 1,127
2
Over-provision of prior year BEFEBEREE
- PRCEIT (notes 7(a)) — PR TSR
(#15%7(a)) (47) (180)
D a
Income tax paid FREMNPER
during the year
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BENER = =
- PRCEIT — B EMRR (1,135) (505)
B )
Effect of foreign currency exchange ERZER 2 5%
differences (28) (177)
At end of the year REXR 2,351 3,561
Representing: &k :
Tax recoverable Pl EIFR 18 - =
Tax payable FE(TIRIE 2,351 3,561
At end of the year RER 2,351 3,561

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T



23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised

(i)

The components of deferred tax
assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during

the year are as follows:

RAEMBRRARZAEH (&)

(b) CRIVEERBREERER

(0]

Depreciation

A MR R R
MR EE E R A G5
R E PRI EIN T :

Depreciation

allowances in excess
in excess of related
of related depreciation
depreciation allowances Total
HrEE BB
RIREEEIR MR E
MR E R st
Deferred tax arising from: HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
EERIERE : FAET FAET FAET
At 1 April 2023 I ——
HE—H 66 (39) 27
Charged to profitorloss 1R EEx
(note 7(a)) (H13t7(a) - - -
At 31 March 2024 and RIZTZMHE
1 April 2024 =B=+—H
RZZZME
mAE—H 66 (39) 27
Charged to profitor loss 1R BE1EHE
(note 7(a)) (Hizt7(a) - - -
At 31 March 2025 MRIBEZHE
EFEF—F 66 (39) 27
ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 £F#R 2024/25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

23. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23. FEHMBRRARZEAEBR (@)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) EREVEIERIEEERERE (B)

recognised (continued)

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated (ii) REM AR RFREER ¢

statement of financial position:

2025 2024
“E-RE —ETE
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Deferred tax assets RERE BT RIESD 2
recognised in the REMRIAE E
consolidated statement of
financial position (39) (39)
Deferred tax liabilities RERE MR T RIESD 2
recognised in the FIERIEE A
consolidated statement of
financial position 66 66
27 27
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 March 2025, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$140,484,000
(2024: approximately HK$134,224,000) and
approximately HKS$Nil (2024: approximately
HK$115,000) available for offset against
future profits that may be carried forward
indefinitely and with expiry date of within 5
years, respectively. As at 31 March 2025, the
Group has deductible temporary differences
of approximately HK$24,497,000 (2024:
HK$Nil). No deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of the tax losses and
deductible temporary differences due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax
is imposed on dividends declared in respect
of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards.

At 31 March 2025, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries amounted to approximately
HK$11,988,000 (2024: approximately
HK$47,926,000). Deferred tax liabilities
of approximately HK$599,000 (2024:
approximately HK$2,396,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it
has been determined that it is probable that
these profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

23.

4= A
1|7F

(c)

(d)

BMBRRARZFARFR (&)

REERIRIEIRIBE =

AT _HRE=BA=1+—H &%
% >k B) [ iR TEE5 38 49140,484,00078
7T (ZZE T4 © £9134,224,00058
70) A Z BT A LUK R A E
F (ZZE M4 : £9115,000%7T) °
WHRRAUERPAEERNRES
NEHH- R _AE=RA=1+—
B AEEEINRERERELY
24,497,000/ (ZZETAF - T8
70) ° AR AR AETE R AR A A F R >
(R < A FR B 5 38 e AT 40 R0 B B 2=
BRERRIEIRIBEE ©

KR IBEREE
@%$H¢¥%aﬁi’u¢ﬁw
Fﬂﬂ#:%%Aﬁ—ﬁ—au@
PR B ER 2 3 B R 2 1R B A
Mo

AZE_RE=ZRB=+—HHK
BAB RS IR 2 G R ERE
#97511,988,000%8 70 (Z T 4 :
#47,926,00078 70) ° HIN AR A BIIE
HZERBARZREBEK  BR
BHZERBRNAKAER A R
JET’FHjﬁ,T&’Iﬁ'ﬁIt Eph D IREZ E
%IJZFEH%RIEEEW%L%RIE%
1,\,\’3599000/%71:( TTEF L
2,396,00078 7T) ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 £E¥R 2024/25

151



152

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

24.

(a)

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 24, RAKHE
The reconciliation between the opening and (@) REBFREERSABE DR ER]
closing balances of each component of the RERERZHRAN IR E
Group's consolidated equity is set out in the R oA RNBZERERAMLIB ORI
consolidated statement of changes in equity. FHRFRZ HEFHFBAT ¢
Details of the changes in the Company'’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
Share Share Merger Capital Contributed Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
k& ROEE AfHEE EAEE  BRERE 6B ELEy
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
&1 TEm FEn i &1 TEn 7En
At 1 April 2023 HZBZ=#mA-A 4207 490 (1522 7851 390 @4) 37004
Loss for the year FEERR - - - - - (9,074) (9,074)
Total comprehensive expenses KA EE2ARTAE
for the year - - - - - (9,074) (9,074)
At 31 March 2024 RIEZME=A=1-H 4217 41,970 (1522) 7851 31,960 (56,546) 27,930
At 1 April 2024 RIE-MEMA—H 4217 4,970 (1,522) 7,851 31,960 (56,546) 27,930
Loss for the year rFEFR - - - - - (8,103) (8,103)
Total comprehensive expenses for  KEE2ARZAE
the year - - - - - (8,103) (8,103)
At 31 March 2025 RIZZRF=F=+-H 4217 4,970 (1,522) 7,851 31,960 (64,649) 19,827

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T



24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 24, BRAKHE (&)
(continued)
(b)  Share capital (b) &7
2025 2024
ZEIEE - S1£3
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RO#UE £ ] RH#E &8
HK$'000 HKS 000
FET FET
Authorised: AR
At the beginning and at the RENRER
end of the year (ordinary (ERmE{E0.000278 7T
shares of HK$0.0002 each) ZEBR) 500,000,000,000 100,000 500,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEREIKRARE :
Ordinary shares of SR EE0.0002E 7T
HK$0.0002 each Z2EER
At the beginning and at the RENREX
end of the year 21,084,072,140 4,217 21,084,072,140 4217

(c)

The owner of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”) and Bye-laws of the Company.

(i) Merger reserve

On 6 January 2003, the Company
became the holding company of the
companies then comprising the Group
pursuant to a group reorganisation
scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”)
at the time of listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange. The
merger reserve of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of a former
subsidiary of the Company acquired
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation
and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

(c)

EERERABRERAREIRZ
KRE UAEEREARTDRE LRE
RERPER -2 -FIAESERINEA
BRGEENTEZAR S

HEETEERAZR

(i) R17@1E
ROEERZARZAR
ZE—NAN—ErE% (2
BliE)) RAERAT ZMAIR

(i) B E

iR NNE=T v N v i
EhEfRETZEBREAR
& ((EEEMH) - AR F
R_EE=F—H/HM®K
AERARAERZEA
BZERAB - AEEZE
HEEABRBEERFHR
BzArE—BaHBA
BAZRMEBEREAAER
RIER B METZ KRG
ZHEEMEZMZE8Ee
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MBS R R MY T

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

24.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the fair value
adjustment on the amounts due to
the former ultimate holding company
and the former immediate holding
company at initial recognition, deemed
capital contribution from the former
immediate holding company on the
date of extension of repayment and
waiver of amount due to the former
ultimate holding company.

Statutory reserves

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
certain PRC subsidiaries in the Group
are required to appropriate not less
than 10% of their profit after tax to the
statutory reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of their registered capital.
Transfers to this reserve must be made
before distribution of dividends to
shareholders.

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
PRC subsidiaries in the Group engaged
in business involving the prescribed
dangerous goods are required to
appropriate certain of their profit,
calculated based on regressive rate
ranging from 0.5% to 4% applied
on the revenue of that entity, to the
statutory reserve. This specific reserve
can be utilised when expenses or
capital expenditures on production
safety measures are incurred. The
amount of this reserve utilised would
be transferred from the reserve account
to retained profits.

24.

RRA K f#fE (4)

(c)

REEERRBR (@)
(iii)  BEAEE
BEARBERN D ERE

(iv)

FEAT Al & IR A B e Al
ERERABREZAR
BZRBE - RNERERAH
WERAEEERATZ
B R B o FE A A B AR

CENSIEEE

A TE R

RBBEROPEIER > &
ErzETHENBELRR
R E R &R D1 10%
BREAERFB BEELE
RHERFMERZ50%%
1k - BRRIBL AR AR R
DK BRI E A

RIEBEANPEER A&
EREIREECRmE
KU ENB AR BRE
RZERWAEBERNOS%
FARMBEXFENET
WA B BEATEHE 2B
BEREITEEZTRIEN
EXRAIYHIERATHETF
MehH e -z#HECB RS
B HRHERELRE R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the
Company at the end of the reporting
period represented the credit arising
from the transfer of the share premium
account of the Company to the
contributed surplus account of the
Company as reduced by amounts
transferred from the contributed
surplus account of the Company to
set off the accumulated losses of the
Company.

(vi) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note
2(s).

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balances. The Group's overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The directors of the Company review the
capital structure regularly. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

24. IRAEKfHEE (&)

(c)

(d)

HELEERRBZE @
)  BHEEF

REBEERR ARABZEH
BEFIERFHAE QT RN &
BRBEEARTDEHR
BRIRFTEEZ ERETRR B
FEREEXRATDERAE
BRARFTE B A LURH AR
B RFHERZ T

i)  EREE

ERREESEMEBRBRE
BINEB Z M B HRRTE
EFZERER - ILRFEHRER
BYSE2(s)Pr 8 2 & 5T BURER
Ho

BEXEE
FEBREEHEANENABBE
BH AR DB FH R EFE BRE
FEERNSBRIFELE  FE
BENERERKN DR AEED
EERBEABEHFESTE-

FABDEREMRABEEREF
BNz MY EFTEBRELMN
TR EEB/EAERZ AR R
EFER AEEBEBEETNR
R BE R R0 AR S 1T R s AR el 3R
ERR UFHHERERRE-

RAB R EEMAN B AR RESE
SNFRPR I INBYE A AR E P AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

24.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 24, RERGHE (&
(continued)
(d)  Capital management (continued) (d) EXxEE G

The Group monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is total borrowings divided by
equity plus total borrowings. Equity represents

rEBEREERBLR BIBE
BERUBENEEEERER - 1E
WIS R EHER AL o 1N

equity attributable to owners of the Company. EHRCBEEBBLERAT
The gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting
periods is as follows:
2025 2024
—ZEhHEF “ZTmE
HKs$’000 HKS$'000
FAET FAET
Total borrowings wEE = =
Equity attributable to owners of the ZNA B #EA A FELi#Em
Company 385,067 435,631
Equity and total borrowings o MREE 385,067 435,631
Gearing ratio BEGR/LIXR Nil Nil
= =




25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M B IR AR Y EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 27
August 2012 for the purpose of providing incentives
to eligible participants and the previous share option
scheme of the Company adopted on 6 January 2003
was terminated on the same date. Unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme
will be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on the date of adoption. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group
to attract, retain and motivate talented participants
to strive for future development and expansion of
the Group. The Share Option Scheme shall provide
incentive to encourage participants to perform their
best in achieving the goals of the Group and allow
the participants to enjoy the results of the Company
attained through their efforts and contributions.
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include any individual being an employee, officer,
agent, consultant or representatives of any member of
the Group (including any executive or non-executive
director of any member of the Group) who, as the
Board may determine in its absolute discretion, has
made valuable contribution to the business of the
Group based on his/her performance and/or years of
service, or is regarded to be a valuable human resource
of the Group based on his/her working experience,
knowledge in the industry and other relevant factors.
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within thirty days from the date of grant, provided that
no such grant shall be open for acceptance after the
expiry of the period of ten years commencing on the
adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or after
the Share Option Scheme has been terminated. The
amount payable by each grantee of options to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
options is HK$1.00.

25.

AKRBR_E—C—HFNBZ+tHE1T

ZHRABREBFERE L RABERESE
(W%HQ*E%’@UJ) UABEER2HEEIR
HEBTRERRILEER ST =5—H1
ﬁEIT%WZHUEﬁHﬂEEJr%' oBRIEMW I
1&5T > 75 BUBE IR R 51 2016 FH Bv 4 B #REE 5
+EHBBRRER - BRESSZEN
EEAERCRS VB RBBEAEZ
2HEAREERRZ2ERAERME
o BERES B RIREER RS HEE
%L?&K%@ZEFT’F&?%”ﬂ’jﬁg
ZHENZRNEBEBREZBNRER
AR ZE}Z%ﬂ%HﬂEﬁi‘Zéé?fﬁ,A
EEEEMNEATERTAKRERRZE
B - BHhBE RE - BEEIAXR (BEX
ERTAREAR ZEMBITHIERNITE
B AT MESEUREBEBEAALTZER
R/ HREEH 2#NEECTEEH
AEBZEBFHESSR HIREFH
AT 2 TR S ~ 2R3 s H 8 B A
EREAREBR2EEANER - BHE
KREZ2EZHTEREEHPES =+BRE
Mo EBRIRHN RS 2R E Bk
T ERRERRNEREEIWAR LR
TREM SLEREARREARBMRIRD
BREZEZNENEAR ZEEEA1.008

Iz °©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
7 o = |

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

25.

AR R M5

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The subscription price for the shares on the exercise
of options under the Share Option Scheme shall be
a price determined by the Board and notified to the
relevant participant at the time of grant of the options
(subject to any adjustments made pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme and the relevant provisions
of the Listing Rules) made to (subject to acceptance
by) the participant and shall be at least the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the
date on which the option is granted, which date
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the option
is granted; and (iii) the nominal value of the share. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and such other terms and
conditions upon which an option was granted, at any
time during the option period after the option has
been granted by the Board but in any event, not longer
than ten years from the date of grant.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant, together with all options granted and to
be granted to him/her under any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company within the 12-month
period immediately preceding the proposed date of
grant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
the shares in issue as at the proposed date of grant.
Any further grant of options to a participant in excess
of the 1% limit shall be subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders with such participant and his/
her associates abstaining from voting.

25.
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The limit on the total number of the shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (excluding lapsed and cancelled
options) must not exceed 30% of the total number
of the shares in issue from time to time. In addition,
the total number of the shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme, together with all options to be
granted under any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (excluding lapsed options), must not
represent more than 10% of the total number of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of the Share
Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) or as at
the date of approval of the refreshed Scheme Mandate
Limit as the case may be. As at 31 March 2025 the
total number of shares of the Company available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme is 1,085,407,210
shares.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross
in shares.

The Share Option Scheme was expired in August 2022
and no new share option scheme is adopted.

25.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

26.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s major financial instruments include the
followings:

26, TRITEAZHMZERABERERR
ARE

FEFEZIESHMTAGENIIRE:

Categories of financial instruments ERITHE 485
2025 2024
—ERE —EFmE
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Financial assets ERMEE
Trade receivables FEWE Z 7018 132,838 171,998
Amount due from a non-controlling FE U IE 2 IR R 2 I Kz
interest and other receivables HAhpgushig 36 478
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 3,134 6,503
Financial assets at amortised cost FREBIERN AT EC SREE 136,008 178,979
Financial liabilities EHaRE
Trade payables FE B S IE 88,479 74,145
Accruals and other payables FEST & B K EAth FE (T 7B 41,800 52,025
Lease liabilities HEaR - 4,178
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B IE R AN SRR SR E B 130,279 130,348

Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The main risks arising from the
Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

TR T EFBRAREMETIRE A& H
TMIEEEZFB2ARBEERR A
BETRR FEXEARKEERRE B/
BEZFRBRZEREN T -EEESR
EEEKMEEZZAR  UERERRE
R EE E FE I o
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 260 TMITAZHBRAKEER

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 2RE (&)

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)  Creditrisk (a) *‘**J‘LB
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty EERBIERZHFEREEGL
will default on its contractual obligations TEW%:&ZK%@“QEZLV?EGEZH
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The eAEBZEERREERBE

Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks, which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk
management policy under which individual
credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are usually due within 360
days from the invoice date or shipment and
delivery date. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk in industries or countries in
which the customers operate. Significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 59% (2024: 38%) and 99%
(2024: 99%) of the total trade receivables is due
from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the
three largest trade debtors respectively.

W E 5 A o ZX%%E%XQL@@
RREEEMZEERRAR
ﬁj%’j‘?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ% RFZRT &

ERAZERTHEEREZEER
e
JEW E 57 E

FEBEHEEERBREERRR
BILHAPTEREZBB —E£8E
ENERETENEEN G -ZF
SHERIER B R BERIBFH AR
BIECER K BRIBYSZ T AE /T > W5t e
=R E’JFE%MLX&E%%E)%%%
FRERERBENER -BWES
IE%?%%EI,HHEE%“EC&QNEIHHE
FT360EMEIMI-EEBER T & &
EAEWEERIERmGo

REBMPEL EBRBHNTESRFT
ENBERLEEAEEES R
BEAGEEETRBIEANAEH
HERNEAEREERSEARR
ﬁﬁ%&z REBERAK  FEUREE 5 2B
MAEERE59% (ZF N4 : 38%)
F299% (Z—ZE UL : 99%) 7 Bl 2k
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BREHAC
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

26.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL. For the credit-impaired trade receivables,
the loss allowances are assessed individually.
As at 31 March 2025, the gross carrying
amount of credit-impaired trade receivables
was approximately HK$80,554,000 (2024:
approximately HK$77,708,000), against which a
loss allowance of approximately HK$39,130,000
was recognised (2024: approximately
HK$32,637,000). For the remaining trade
receivables, the loss allowances are calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group uses debtors’ aging to assess
the impairment for its customers. For trade
receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL.

26.
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)
The following table provides information about

the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade receivables:

26.

THMIAZMBEAKRERERER

QanfE (&)

(a) SERE (&)
BUWEZ A (&

TREHEANRAEEZEERRMU
KEWE ZRIAZ RIEERKIR

2025
—T-EHE
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHARSIE R IREARE LS
% HK$’000 HKs’000
% FHET FHET
Current (not past due) BOHA (R HA) 0.22 91,572 197
1-30 days past due BHIE30H - = =
31-60 days past due BHI31E60H 3.33 30 1
61-90 days past due #iH#A61E90H = 10 =
More than 90 days past due #IEABiE90H 100.00 711 711
92,323 9209
Credit - impaired assessed =E—
individually BIE ST RE 48.58 80,554 39,130
172,877 40,039

ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 £E¥R 2024/25

163



164

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

26.

TMIAZMBEAKRERERER

[ (&)

(a) SEER (&)

Trade receivables (continued) FEWE Z7E (4
2024
e T (UE
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TRHAES 1R = IREARE BE R
% HKS'000 HKS'000
% FET FHET
Current (not past due) BOHA (RagiA) 0.79 85,011 674
1-30 days past due AHI1E30H 2.84 7,195 204
31-60 days past due AHI31E60H 2.86 6,964 199
61-90 days past due #IHA61E90H 2.86 7,529 215
More than 90 days past due % £A#B##90H 5.91 22,871 1,351
129,570 2,643
Credit - impaired assessed 55—
individually BEThRE 42.00 77,708 32,637
207,278 35,280
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

THMIAZMBEAKRERERER
QanfE (&)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the year over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

Receivables that were past due but not
impaired related to customers that had a
good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believed that
no impairment allowance was necessary
in respect of these balances as there had
been no significant change in credit quality
and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable.

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of lifetime ECL recognised for trade
receivables during the years are as follows:

(a)

EERE (&)
FEWE Z7E ()

BHBEXDENBEEFENER
BERER CHZSILERFERAER
DU BR 1S W B FE 52 BB R EE R AE
AR A AR B 7 6 [ PR IR
IR BEMANGERRNE
EZERER-

BB R E < FEWGRIE R R
HAEEBEAERFEEREZE
F-REBBELR BSEERAE
AR LR sHR R R E A
RAREEERLESKES M
ZEBFDRE R 2BURE -

FIEWE ZRIAFEIHFEREER
Bt Rz ERERERNEAFEZE
2L

2025 2024

—ERE —EIMNE

HK$’000 HKS000

FAET FAET

Balance at beginning of the year  FAEF] 2 i8R 35,280 3,103
Loss allowance recognised RAFEERDEEEE

during the year 5,186 32,615

Exchange differences b 2 =% (427) (438)

Balance at end of the year KR Z 48R 40,039 35,280
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

26.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

26, TRITEAZHMZERABERERR
NRE (@)

(b)  Liquidity risk (b) REBEZRME
The cash management policy of the Group AEEZREBEBRBEURE
includes short-term investment of cash BRETHPRE  UKEGER
surpluses and raising of loans to cover B REFTE - AEBRZEEK
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is AERSERBTAEATSHESR
to regularly monitor its current and expected ERETFTBEZEZIBR UER
liquidity requirements and its compliance with HEREH 2 HEHEERREER
lending covenants to ensure that it maintains BEE TR 2 A B EER  LUE
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate HEPAREPRRBESE R -KAE
committed lines of funding from major BRBEREBE S RIBTTRRES
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements HRHEE2EERKR
in the short and long term. The Group relies
on its liquid funds and bank advances as
significant sources of liquidity.
The following tables set out the remaining TR AEBNIETESHMEBE
contractual maturities at the end of the RE|EARZEBG TEOEEBER
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative DIRBEARMERTE R (BER
financial liabilities, which are based on BEAFEY (MAFE) RREH
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including RZEBRIMEHEZFENR K
interest payments computed using contractual AEBHERERZRFE B
rates or, if floating, based on rates current B
at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
2025
ZEZEE
Total
contractual
Within undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows amount
BHRER
HER R—ER —EWE ZERE REREEH IREfE
HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'00  HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial FirEEman:
liabilities:
Trade payables ERESE 88,479 - - 88,479 88,479
Accruals and other payables FEstERREMEARIE 41,800 - - 41,800 41,800
Lease liabilities HE&R - - = = =
130,279 = = 130,279 130,279
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26 TRMTHAZHMBREEERK
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL RaE (B
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HIEBEZEARK (@)
2024
—BomE
Total
contractual
Within undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows amount
BRRBE
BER R—ER —EfE ZERE RenedE FRAE
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FAT FHT FHT FAT FHT FAT
Non-derivative financial EfTEEREE:
liabilities:
Trade payables ERESE = 74,145 = = 74,145 74,145
Accruals and other payables et B R REMEARIE - 52,025 - - 52,025 52,025
Lease liabilities HE&R - 1932 2,577 = 4,509 4178
= 128,102 2577 = 130,679 130,348
(c) Interest rate risk (c) ) 2= 7 b
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or FERRIE—EBEM T AZARE

future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank balances (see note 19(a) for details) and
fair value interest rate risk mainly in relation to
fixed-rate amount due from a non-controlling
interest (see note 18(a) for details).

Interest rate risks are managed by the Group by
maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed
and variable rate financial instruments.

FARRFEERERTH RE BT
ﬁfﬁl)ﬂz@JZﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂK%@ﬁ‘t&%ﬁE
THEER GFBRINEE19(a)) AR IR
EREF XA kT EREWE
?’“Hx’f& fZERME GFBERME
a)) o

FEREEMNERBZ T ERER
AEEGZERKRIEERMIA

ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 £E¥R 2024/25

167



168
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

26.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2025, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 5% (2024: 5%) in interest
rates for variable-rate financial instruments,
with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group's loss
after tax and the increased/decreased Group's
retained profits by approximately HK$157,000
(2024: increased the Group’s profit after tax
and the increased the Group’s retained profits
by approximately HK$325,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank balances. Other
components of the Group’s consolidated equity
would not change in response to the general
increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 5% (2024: 5%) increase/decrease
in interest rates is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2024.

26.
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

(1)

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily through sales and purchases
which give rise to receivables, payables
and cash and cash equivalents that are
denominated in a foreign currency, that
is, a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which
the transactions relate. In addition, the
Company has intra-group balances with
several subsidiaries denominated in
foreign currencies which also expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.
The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily USD and RMB. The Group
manages this risk as follows:

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of other assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies,
the Group closely monitors the net
exposure and will enter into forward
foreign exchange contracts to hedge
against the Group’s currency exposure
it considered necessary.

The following details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in HKS, translated using the
spot rates at the end of the reporting
period. Exposure resulting from the
translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency are excluded.

26.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 260 TRTAZHBFRKREER
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ARE (B)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) L g (48)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) Vo=t =)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HK$)

SN R (B TTHIR)
2025 2024
—ECRE “EIRE
uss RMB uss RMB

£ ARHE ET ARE
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000
FET FET TFAET TET

Trade receivables fEWRE 77018 78,982 53,856 63,806 108,192
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEED 2,008 140 5,290 138
Trade payables e B S8 (79,266) (8,913) (60,325) (13,519)

Net exposure arising from recognised BB ERBEMEE
assets and liabilities ZERFE 1,724 45,083 8,771 94,811
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26. SMTAZHMBRREER
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DRE (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) SR (8)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (ii) R E T
The following tables indicate the THREBLRMEEAEBRNRRSE
instantaneous change in the Group’s BAASEARMZEX
loss after tax (and retained profits) REQAETEES  RERT
and other comprehensive income that BEEHMEBHEZTRE K
would arise if foreign exchange rates EEMREEE (REYH
to which the Group has significant F) REMEEUE Z B
exposure at the end of the reporting GEHoFIbtM= > EHHRE
period had changed at that date, HTHET D HEEXAR
assuming all other risk variables FERETREME KED
remained constant. In this respect, it is EB 2 EEEHMSIE
assumed that the pegged rate between SEER FFH (TRE)
the HKS$ and the USD would not be 5%75 S 18 B Fff 5T 14 4h S 5
materially affected by any changes EEERINES DA
in movement in value of the USD SERRAG(EE) >
against other currencies. The increase/ BRHELEX o
(decrease) in foreign exchange rates
of 5% represents the sensitivity rate
of management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible strengthening/
(weakening) of the foreign currency
against the functional currencies of the
group entities.
2025 2024
ZZCEHE “EINE
Increase/ increase/
(decrease) (Decrease)/ Increase/ (decrease) (Decrease)/ Increase/
in foreign increase  (decrease) in foreign increase  (decrease)
exchange inloss inretained  exchange in profit in retained
rates  after tax profits rates after tax profits
BRiE  RERH BiRe  RBEA
BEL#H &1 ED) B EXEFAF B A 11
/ (FK) /8m Gy /(TR JEm /@)
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
FAT FAT FEm FAET
RMB AR 5% (2,254) 2,254 5% (4,741) 4,741
(5%) 2,254 (2,254) (5%) 4,741 (4,741)
Us$ ET 5% (86) 86 5% (439) 439
(5%) 86 (86) (5%) 439 (439)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

26.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented
in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the group entities’
profit or loss after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HKS$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of
the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2024.

In management’s opinion, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk
because the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect
the exposure during the year, at the
USD denominated liabilities are with
different maturity dates and the
changes in foreign exchange rates may
not be steady throughout the year.

26.

TMIAZMBEAKRERERER
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27.

28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into the following material
related party transactions:

Key management personnel compensation

All members of key management personnel are the
directors of the Company, and the remuneration for
them during directorship is disclosed in note 8 and
total remuneration for them (including amounts
paid to them as employee of the Group prior to
appointment as directors) in the year as follows:

27.

EXEALRS

REFEBFIILTHNERBBEALRS !

FTEEEASHM
FFAETEEBEAEHREARBZEET K
EREREFHECWEENM T E
REERFRNZHMEE (BEESRES
EFECAERAERREEINTRENS
88) #IUF

2025 2024
“ERE —ZETOF
HKs’000 HKS$'000
FAET FAET

Salaries and other short-term employee ¥ & Hth1g #i{E E &7
benefits 4,540 4,540
Post-employment benefits BB B RN 36 36
4,576 4,576

Total remuneration is included in “employee benefits
expenses” (see note 6(b)).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the
end of the reporting period but not recognised as
liabilities is as follows:

28.

Bl Eest A MEERMBEY (BRI
6(b)) A °

B K

REBESHRTLEHAERIBEEB/ZERKR
BRSO :

2025 2024
ZTRE “ETHE
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FAET FET
Contracted for but not provided for BRI A ERRGE M
in the consolidated financial IRREHIREH
statements
- acquisition of property, —WEME R AR E
plant and equipment - 10,420
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

29. SUBSIDIARIES 29. MBAR
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 RIE_RAFE=B=1+—HZFEREBA
March 2025: T :
Place of
establishment or Particulars of
incorporation/ Class of issued and Attributable Principal
Name of subsidiary business sharesheld  paid up capital equity interest activities
R ML, BETR
W@ A E%HE " BREN  BRREZHE ElhREED TELH
2025 2024
—BLRE —BOME

Indirectly held

MERE

China Mining Industrial Import &  Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2024: 1 share) 100% 100%  Sourcing and
Export Company Limited sale of metal

minerals and
related industrial
materials

FEBZELOEZERAA &% BB 1RRA BERHETRE

C2-mE: MRIERTE
AR 1) R
Global Metal Industrial Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2024: 1 share) 100% 100%  Sourcing and
Limited sale of metal
minerals and
related industrial
materials
2IEBEEERAD &8 BB 1RRA BRERHETRE
C2-mE: MRIERTE
AR 1) R

New Provenance Everlasting Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2024: 1 share) 100% 100%  Provision of
Management Company Limited management

services

HEBEEEERAR &% E@ 1A 17 REEERE

(CZI@EE:
1R 817)

EEEERFEFRETAE  PRC Registered ~ RMB77,365,215 100% 100%  Production and
IR/A 7] (literally translated as (2024: RMB77,365,215) sale of industrial
“Ningxia Huaxia Integrated products
Waste Recycling Company
Limited") (note) (Hfz%)

FE G AR #77,3652157 LERBETER
(CE-mE: Em
AR #77,365,2157T)
Note:  Registered under the laws of PRC as wholly-foreign- Kzt . WIBEBFEVEGIGEMANIEREERZE-

owned enterprise.
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 30.

FINANCIAL POSITION

REEEZMHBIRRER

2025 2024
—E_RE =M
Note HKs’000 HKS'000
izt FAET FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBABZIRE - -
Current assets MEEE
Prepayments, deposits and FANRmE RS REM
other receivables & W I8 103,428 103,247
Cash and cash equivalents BERREEEY 1,037 1,146
104,465 104,393
Current liabilities Pt B=RE
Accruals and other payables FESt & F A H A FE R IB 84,638 76,463
Net assets BERE 19,827 27,930
Equity g
Equity attributable to owners EN/NSIE - Z DNy e
of the Company
Share capital &N 24(b) 4,217 4,217
Reserves HE 15,610 23,713
Total equity iR 19,827 27,930
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

31.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

(a)

(b)

Significant accounting judgements
Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowance for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Details
of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in the tables in note 26(a).

Key sources of estimation uncertainties

The following are the key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

31.

G5t R FREA A B RE 1%

(a)

(b)

BEARGHHIER

L ERE

THEEFBREEEENHEY
R KB IRE 2 R met & o
AEBMUEEHZERZLEZERE
AENEAER RBAERNGE
KE-IRAMBEREURRERS
RAZR B A B M (i ot #E 1T I B o RA B2
=L INEEI N
26(a) Z ZR i ©

fhst FEERRZ EEZRIR
UTRIRBBZEEZRR UK
REBSHAREEIEERN T—@
MREEARBEEKRERREEF
HERHBEZEARNERZ TEER
RZHMEERIR-



31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

(continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainties
(continued)

(1)

Estimated impairment of non-financial
assets

Determining whether there is an
impairment requires an estimation
of recoverable amounts of the non-
financial assets or the respective CGU in
which the non-financial assets belong,
which is the higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal. If there
is any indication that an asset may be
impaired, recoverable amount shall be
estimated for individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of the individual asset, the
Group shall determine the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise
from the assets or CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. The discount rate
represents a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the future cash flow
estimates have not been adjusted.
Where the actual future cash flows or
the revision of estimated future cash
flows are less than original estimated
future cash flow, a material impairment
loss may arise.

31.

= D-I-#:IJ gﬁ&fzsl TEE/E'I‘E (u\ﬁ)

(b) EESAFBRERRZEERR (&)

(i) HFEMEEZ I BE

EERSFEHBERBMG
STHERIFEMEENIFS
MEEMBEREELES
fiiz ] iR El& %8 > BIfE AR B
BEEAAREBBRLEREZ
ReE -HAERRBTRER
BE - BIZERL
BRI & EMstEHolEE
oM AAEMETENEEZ
PIURElE %8 B AR EEEE
TEEMBRESELEN
2 ol El& %8 o EAEES
BERKEEMGHBERE
TEHRAEENREESL
BAZARKBERERE

—IEEEP A

B MIRERLIGtERE

fﬁzﬁfiﬂ?fﬁﬁﬁi ¥T$

2 05 [ B /e ok A BB R 2R 3R

EMEMST2EERTR
ME’J&T cBBEMRAKREKRE
MEBHE M RKRRE
a8 D5 R 2R A A9 AR 2R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a5 ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HLEFE

31. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

31. EFtFIETRFAERAREEN (&

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

(continued)
(b)  Key sources of estimation uncertainties (b) HAFEEREZEERIE (E)
(continued)
(ii) Provision of ECL for trade receivables (i) EIRE ZIEZ FEE
ISR
Trade receivables with significant AEEBBHIGHGEHREAKR
balances and credit-impaired are BEREEEREZENK
assessed for ECL individually. In BEMRIBAREERE.
addition, the Group uses practical o REERAERER
expedient in estimating ECL on trade T304 fh 5T I 4 5 AR BB AR
receivables which are not assessed fEE BT ENERE S ®
individually using a provision matrix. Bz EHAGEEBRE BEX
The provision rates are based on days BERZEHEAAR Z8E
past due as groupings of various HHE R EEAER
debtors taking into consideration the EFEAXREEAEMN
Group’s historical default rates and KL ABATERZ I8
forward-looking information that is REZFHMREEENESE
reasonable and supportable available Ho-MEBREBH AEEH
without undue costs or effort. At EEMAGEELEREN
every reporting date, the historical K ERAIBEEENZ &
observed default rates are reassessed 6o
and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.
The provision of ECL is sensitive to TEHEEBEERBHE MG
changes in estimates. The information Z2EBHARHRHE -BEE
about the ECL and the Group's trade HEEBBRAEEREW
receivables are disclosed in note 26(a). B MEZERIEERK
5F26(a) ©
(iii)  Net realisable value of inventories (i)  HFEZOEEEFEE

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated
cost necessary to make the sale. These
estimates are based on the current
market conditions and the historical
experience of selling products of
similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in
customer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

FENTEFFEANE
EEBBETNGEAEE
1 B & 51 52 A% BY Bl 25 Kz 85
EFRMEET A - ZE Mt
VEE-3 =W R Y& )
FHEFNELHEERZK
B HOJ st A= P EiF o
REFHFEEBRIENTT
FEBMELITEMH
REANEZ - BEEENSR
SR BT ERE G-



31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M B RMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainties
(continued)

(iv)

(v)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account
the estimated residual values. The
management reviews the estimated
useful lives and the residual values
of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation
charge for the year. The useful lives
and the residual values are based on
the Group’s historical experience with
similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation charge for future periods
is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

Determining the lease term

As explained in policy note 2(g), the
lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term.
In determining the lease term at the
commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable
by the Group, the Group evaluates
the likelihood of exercising the
renewal options taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive
for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to
the Group's operation. The lease term is
reassessed when there is a significant
event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s
control. Any increase or decrease in the
lease term would affect the amount of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised in future years.

31.
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AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

31.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥7/RE (EIERE B EA T

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainties
(continued)

(vi)

Income tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are
subject to income taxes, including
capital gain tax, if any, in Hong Kong
and PRC. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many
transactions for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the financial period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating
to certain temporary differences are
recognised as management considers
it is likely that future taxable profits
will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from
the original estimates, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred
tax assets and income tax charges in
the period in which such estimates are
changed.

31.
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS
AND NEW HKFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2025

Up to the date of approval for issue of these
consolidated financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2025 and which
have not been adopted in these consolidated financial
statements, as follows:
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and ~ Amendments to the Classification

HKFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7,
Accounting Standards 2024 HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 72

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®

HKFRS 18 and consequential
amendments to other
HKFRSs

HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2026

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2027

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a

date to be determined

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards mentioned below, the directors
anticipate that the application of the above new and
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

32.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR E M B RRITEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2025 HE_Z_AFE=-H=+—HLFE

32. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS 32.
AND NEW HKFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2025 (continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements and consequential amendments to
other HKFRS Accounting Standards

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements (“HKAS 1”). It carries forward many
requirements from HKAS 1 unchanged. HKFRS 18
brings major changes to the statement of profit or loss
and notes to the financial statements as follows:

(a) HKFRS 18 requires an entity:

(i) to classify income and expenses into
operating, investing and financing
categories in the statement of
profit or loss, plus income taxes and
discontinued operations;

(ii) to present two new defined subtotals,
namely, operating profit or loss and
profit or loss before financing and
income taxes.

(b) It requires an entity to disclose management-
defined performance measures (“MPM”) and
reconciliations between MPM and subtotals
listed in HKFRS 18 or totals or subtotals
required by HKFRS Accounting Standards.

(c) It sets out requirements to help an entity
determine whether information about items
should be in the primary financial statements
or in the notes and provides principles for
determining the level of detail needed for the
information.

HKFRS 18 also set out classification requirements
for foreign exchange differences, the gain or loss on
the net monetary position, and gains and losses on
derivatives and designated hedging instruments.
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2025 HE_ZE _HF=FB=+—HILFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS
AND NEW HKFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2025 (continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements and consequential amendments to
other HKFRS Accounting Standards (continued)

In addition, some paragraphs in HKAS 1 have been
moved to HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of Financial
Statements and HKFRS 7. Minor amendments to HKAS
7 Statement of Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per
Share are also made.

HKFRS 18 and consequential amendments to other
HKFRS Accounting Standards are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027, with early application permitted. The application
of the new standard is expected to affect the
presentation of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and disclosures in the future consolidated
financial statements. The Group is in the process of
assessing the detailed impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Based on the information currently available, the
Directors confirm that there has been no material
adverse change in the financial or trading position of
the Group since the end of the reporting period and
up to the date of this annual report.

32.

33.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFEMBHRE

Year ended 31 March
BE=B=1+—HLEFE

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
ZECHE ZCWE ZZI=F IZRITZE ZTF
HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$'000
FET FAET FET FAET FAET
RESULTS E
Revenue from continuing operations RESEEB R 470,308 864,305 1,888,298 262,229 601,950
(Loss)/profit before taxation from continuing ¥ & 48 & £ 3R AT
operations (5518 /&# (46,145) (30,234) 3,369 (6,836) (11,912)
Income tax from continuing operations BEKEEHHMER 47 (947) (2,032) 1,399 (3,078)
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing I ELEEBEE
operations (B18) /&) (46,098) (31,181) 1,337 (5,437) (14,990)
Non-controlling interests JEiERR S 217 399 505 (15) 92
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners KABEBEANEGEE
of the Company for the year (B18) /&R
- from continuing operations —RERFECEER (45,881) (30,782) 1,842 (5.452) (14,898)
- from discontinued operation —REBRIEREER - - - - (23,009)
(45,881) (30,782) 1,842 (5,452) (37,907)
At 31 March
®=B=+—-H
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
ZEZEE CZETIME TIZF EIH E”-F
HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEHGHE
Total assets BEME 508,350 560,355 1,805,176 625,019 977,766
Total liabilities BEEE (132,696) (133975 (1,321,104) (102,995) (472,430)
Non-controlling interests FERER 9,413 9,251 9,134 9,053 8,835
385,067 435,631 493,206 531,077 514,171
Equity attributable to owners of AREER NELRER
the Company 385,067 435,631 493,206 531,077 514,171

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥T/RES (E1ERE B EA T



\ ki erar A9

New Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited




	封面
	目錄
	簡稱
	財務摘要
	公司資料
	主席報告
	業務回顧
	董事及高級管理人員履歷詳情
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	封底



